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1. Business Activities and General Conditions 

1.1. Organisation and legal structure of the SIMONA Group 

The SIMONA Group manufactures and markets a range of semi-finished plastics, pipes and 

fittings as well as finished parts. The materials used include polyethylene (PE), polypropylene 

(PP), polyvinyl chloride (PVC), polyethylene terephthalate (PETG), polyvinylidene fluoride 

(PVDF) and ethylene-chlorotrifluoroethylene (E-CTFE) as well as various specialist materials. 

The production methods applied within this area range from extrusion, pressing and injection 

moulding to CNC manufacturing. SIMONA also maintains its own plastics laboratories and 

workshops for the production of customised fittings. 

In the period under review, the SIMONA Group operated facilities located in Germany and 

abroad. Semi-finished products (sheets, rods, welding rods) are manufactured at two plants in 

Kirn (Rhineland-Palatinate), while sheets and finished parts are produced at the company's 

plant in Kirchhundem-Würdinghausen (North Rhine-Westphalia) and pipes and fittings at a 

facility in Ringsheim (Baden-Württemberg). The facility based in Hazleton (Pennsylvania, USA) 

manufactures products destined mainly for the American market. Two new production sites, 

one in Jiangmen, China, and another in Litvinov, Czech Republic, are currently being 

established and are scheduled to commence or extend production in the course of 2008. 

Semi-finished products are mainly deployed within the area of chemical equipment and 

mechanical engineering, the transport industry, the construction sector, the exhibition and 

display sector as well as the automotive industry. Pipes and fittings are used primarily for 
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drinking-water supply, sewage disposal and industrial piping systems, including the chemical 

process industry. 

The SIMONA Group markets its products worldwide. The Group's distribution structure is based 

on sales regions (Germany/Rest of Europe and Africa/Asia, America and Australia) as the 

primary segments; the secondary segments, centred around product areas, comprise semi-

finished products as well as pipes and fittings. Sales activities at Group level are conducted by 

SIMONA AG and subsidiaries in the United Kingdom, Italy, France, Spain, Poland, the Czech 

Republic, Hong Kong, China and the United States. Beyond this, the AG (i.e. the parent 

company) operates a sales office in Möhlin, Switzerland. The parent company, SIMONA AG, 

has its registered office in 55606 Kirn (Germany). 

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic, which commenced operating activities 

in 2007, was included in the consolidated group for the first time. In June 2007, SIMONA Plast-

Technik s.r.o. acquired the plastic fittings operations of PTE Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, as 

part of an asset deal. 

As at December 31, 2007, the share capital of SIMONA AG was 15,500,000, divided into 

600,000 no-par-value bearer shares ("Stückaktien" governed by German law). The shares are 

traded in the General Standard of the German stock exchange in Frankfurt as well as on the 

Berlin securities exchange. 

In the financial year under review the Management Board consisted of Wolfgang Moyses 

(Chairman/CEO), Jochen Feldmann and Dirk Möller. The members of the Supervisory Board 

were Hans-Wilhelm Voss (Chairman), Hans-Werner Marx (Deputy Chairman), Roland Frobel 

and Dr. Roland Reber as shareholder representatives, as well as Bernd Meurer and Karl-Ernst 

Schaab as staff representatives. 

 

1.2. Business Review 

Revenue growth significantly higher than industry average 

SIMONA again outpaced both the German and the global economy in terms of growth over the 

course of 2007, as well as outperforming the plastics processing industry as a whole. 

Compared with the previous year, Group revenue was propelled by 37.1 million to 299.9 

million. This corresponds to year-on-year growth of 14.1 per cent, setting a new record for the 

highest consolidated revenue generated by the company since its inception. The parent 

company, SIMONA AG, increased its revenue by 16.7 per cent to 265.7 million.  

 

Germany produces most sizeable growth 

The SIMONA Group exploited favourable economic conditions to generate significant revenue 

growth in the domestic sales region of Germany. Revenue increased by 17.8 per cent year on 

year, up from 97.5 million to 114.9 million, thus outpacing growth in total revenue. Within this 

context, the forward momentum came mainly from substantial exports within Germany's 

chemical and mechanical engineering industries. Expanded production of pressed sheets and 

the inclusion of finished parts within the portfolio following the takeover of Dehoplast made a 
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significant contribution to revenue growth. As a sales region, Germany accounted for 38.3 per 

cent of total revenue, up from 37.1 per cent a year ago.  

Within this context, SIMONA was able to take advantage of the continued buoyancy shown by 

its domestic economy. The German economy displayed strong growth for the second year in 

succession in 2007, albeit at a slightly less dynamic rate than in the past. The economy as a 

whole expanded by 2.5 per cent, compared with 2.9 per cent in the previous year. From mid-

2007 the general outlook for future economic growth deteriorated as a result of the ongoing 

crisis within the global financial markets, leading to greater uncertainty. The forward momentum 

recorded in the domestic market was attributable principally to capital expenditure. Investments 

in machinery and equipment, for instance, rose by 8.4 per cent, while those channelled into 

new construction projects increased by 2 per cent compared with the preceding year. Above all, 

however, net exports proved to be a key contributor to growth, accounting for a share of 1.4 per 

cent.  

The trend within SIMONA's key customer markets was bifurcated. The chemical industry 

reaped the rewards of solid economic development in 2007, expanding by 4.5 per cent in terms 

of production output and by 7.5 per cent with regard to sales revenue. However, business 

performance within the individual segments of the chemical industry was anything but 

homogeneous: while the base materials sector – polymers, petrochemicals and inorganic base 

chemicals – only grew by around 2 per cent on average, production output in the other 

segments of the chemical industry increased markedly.  

With projected growth of 11 per cent in 2007, Germany's mechanical engineering sector recor- 

ded one of the most successful years of the post-war era. Forward momentum within this area 

was driven in equal parts by domestic and overseas demand. Exports were buoyed in particular 

by business activities in Europe, which produced year-on-year gains of close to 17 per cent.  

The international trade fairs based in Germany recorded their best results in seven years. 

Provisional data points to 3 per cent growth in exhibitor, floor space and visitor numbers.  

Calculated on the basis of preliminary figures, the German construction industry is likely to 

report a 4 per cent increase in sales revenue for 2007. Demand and order intake were driven in 

particular by the greater propensity to invest, both within the private and the public sector.  

Against this economic backdrop, the plastics processing industry registered more pronounced 

growth rates than the German economy as a whole. Revenue generated within this sector rose 

by 7.5 per cent to 53 billion in 2007. As in the past, growth was driven mainly by exports over 

the course of 2007. Revenue from foreign sales rose by 9.8 per cent within the plastics 

processing industry. Buoyed by year-on-year growth, the export ratio thus climbed to a new 

high of 36.6 per cent (previous year: 36.0 per cent). In parallel, revenue from domestic sales, 

which rose by 6.4 per cent, also contributed to growth in the year under review, driven by the 

continuing strength of the domestic economy. Having said that, earnings generated by 

companies within the plastics processing sector have come under increasing pressure. Faced 

with a surge in raw material, energy and transportation costs, many enterprises were unable to 

pass on to their customers the full extent of price rises. Furthermore, the industry as a whole 

had to contend with less favourable delivery terms imposed by producers of raw materials. 
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More expansive growth in Europe and Africa 

Economic growth in Europe remained stable in 2007. The eurozone as a whole grew by 2.6 per 

cent (previous year: 2.7 per cent), while economic expansion in the European Union again 

stood at 2.9 per cent, the same as in the previous year. 

Against this favourable economic backdrop, the Group's sales region of Europe & Africa 

recorded a significant year-on-year boost to its growth. At 13.5 per cent, this region expanded 

at a much more pronounced rate than in the previous year (8.5 per cent). Revenue amounted 

to 151.3 million, compared to 133.3 million in 2006. Within this context, demand for semi-

finished plastics remained particularly strong in Central and Eastern Europe, the main impetus 

coming from structural engineering and the advertising industry. In parallel, a solid level of 

orders within the area of chemical tank and equipment engineering continued to produce 

forward momentum in Europe. 

 

America hit by crisis in financial markets 

Whereas business development in the emerging economies of Asia and in Australia remained 

dynamic over the course of the year, progress in the American market was much slower as a 

result of subdued demand in the wake of the financial markets crisis as well as the relocation of 

production from Mountain Top to Hazleton. Having said that, the Group managed to generate 

forward momentum in terms of regional sales revenue. Due to exchange rate effects, 

translation into euro, as the reporting currency, produced a 1.7 million decline in revenue to 

34.5 million. 

 

Dynamic development of semi-finished products – Revenue growth from foreign sales in 

pipes and fittings segment 

In addition to benefiting from the prevailing strength of the global economy, the SIMONA Group 

reaped the rewards of an expanded product portfolio. This translated into larger sales volumes 

in all product categories. Within the area of semi-finished products, business with pressed 

sheets made of PE, PP and PVC produced the most sizeable gains in sales volume and 

revenue. For the first time since the takeover of the plastics business of Deutsche 

Holzveredelung Alfons & Ewald Schmeing oHG (now Plant V at SIMONA AG) in October 2006, 

the results of Plant V have been incorporated in profit and loss for a full annual period. This in 

particular produced a significant rise in sales volumes and revenues within the area of finished 

parts, profiles and pressed sheets. In total, revenue within the semi-finished products segment 

rose by 14.0 per cent to 213.1 million.  

The piping systems segment continued its forward momentum by expanding  its revenues by 

9.4 per cent year on year to 87.6 million. The Group's focus on international project business 

has clearly borne fruit within this area. Non-domestic orders for PE and PP pipes/fittings made 

a significant contribution to growth.  
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Improved process engineering – Accelerated product development 

In the financial year under review, the main focus of SIMONA's research and development 

activities was on optimising process technology and formulae as part of an interdisciplinary 

approach. 

The Group intensified its product development activities and unveiled a new PP-DWU 

AlphaPlus product line that is to be rolled out gradually over the course of 2008. By 

incorporating special nucleating agents and adjusting key elements within the area of process 

engineering, we were able to develop a PP-H with -crystalline properties – SIMONA® PP-

DWU AlphaPlus. Thus for the first time SIMONA can offer a complete product portfolio 

consisting of pipes and fittings, sheets as well as solid rods and welding rods featuring a 

consistently nucleated PP-H as the base material throughout the range.  The ultra-fine and 

stable alpha-crystalline structure has provided the basis for significant improvements in the 

rigidity, notched impact strength and welding properties of this product. Therefore, the 

operational safety reserves associated with these materials are considerably higher. 

Additionally, SIMONA developed its second generation of PE, PP and PPs twin-wall sheets in 

2007, with market rollout scheduled for 2008. The new generation of twin-wall sheets has 

variable web spacing and can withstand higher loads despite their low weight. Because there is 

no longer a need for steel reinforcements, the potential cost savings within the area of tank 

construction amount to roughly 30 per cent. Twin-wall sheets are used mainly for lightweight 

formwork, swimming-pool covers, sound barriers, tanks, covers for electroplating baths, floating 

pontoons, silo linings, transport systems and as interior liners for truck trailers.  

Research and development expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and 

depreciation/amortisation of non-current assets. Owing to the interrelationship between 

customer-specific manufacturing procedures, optimisation measures within the area of process 

engineering and formulae as well as product development itself, the above-mentioned 

expenses cannot be systematically segregated from production costs. 

 

2. Financial Performance 

Improved earnings 

Earnings before interest and taxes managed to keep pace with dynamic revenue growth and 

rose by 4.8 million to 19.7 million. The EBIT margin improved to 6.6 per cent, up from 5.7 per 

cent last year, and thus fell just slightly short of the minimum target of 7 per cent.  

Against the backdrop of higher raw material prices in particular, expenses attributable to raw 

materials and consumables rose at a faster rate than sales revenue, which had a dampening 

effect on overall earnings performance. The cost of materials increased by 16.9 per cent to 

175.1 million. Energy costs incurred by the parent company alone rose by more than 2 

million. As regards the cost of raw materials, the price of polyolefins, in particular, increased 

year on year in response to a global surge in demand, while production capacities remained 

unchanged.  
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Owing to the intensity of competition within the market, the Group was only able to pass on part 

of these price rises to its customers. Although gross profit rose by 11.8 million to 124.8 

million, the Group's gross profit margin receded to 41.6 per cent, down from 43.0 per cent a 

year ago. 

Staff costs increased by 6.1 million to 58.1 million in 2007. Of this total, 46 million was 

attributable to wages and salaries, while 12.1 million was expended on social security and 

post-employment benefits. The year-on-year increase was attributable principally to the first-

time inclusion for a full annual period of payroll items relating to personnel employed at what is 

now Plant V, which was taken over by the company. 

Other operating expenses increased by 4.0 million. Within this context, operating costs 

remained stable. Distribution costs rose as a result of more expansive sales volumes. Higher 

charges for outward freight had a noticeable impact on this expense item. At parent-company 

level, costs associated with advertising and exhibitions increased by 0.8 million due to 

marketing measures implemented as part of SIMONA's 150th anniversary as well as activities 

at the world's largest plastics trade fair, "K".  

The bottom-line result in America fell short of break-even as a result of delays to the start of 

production following relocation, economic pressures stemming from the financial crisis and 

personnel-related issues. 

 

Significant improvement in EBIT 

The key financial indicators used by SIMONA for the purpose of analysing and controlling 

operating results are EBIT (Earnings before Interest and Taxes) and EBITDA (Earnings before 

Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation). EBIT represents the operating result before 

interest and taxes as well as the effects of investments. In the case of EBITDA, non-cash 

depreciation of property, plant and equipment as well as amortisation of intangible assets are 

added to the EBIT figure. Both EBIT and EBITDA can thus be used for the purpose of 

evaluating a company's earnings performance, in addition to providing an approximation of 

cash flow. Earnings before interest and taxes amounted to 19.7 million, resulting in an EBIT 

margin of 6.6 per cent. This represents a significant year-on-year improvement by almost one 

percentage point. Group EBITDA totalled 32.5 million in the period under review, compared 

with 28.0 million in 2006. On this basis, the EBITDA margin declined by 0.1 percentage points 

to 10.8 per cent. 

Earnings before interest and taxes at parent-company level improved substantially compared 

with the previous year, rising by 57.2 per cent to 21.2 million. The EBIT margin of SIMONA AG 

rose from 5.9 to 7.6 per cent, which is well within the company's target range. 
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3. Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Non-current financial liabilities amount to 5.0 million. A total of 3.4 million is attributable to a 

loan of a nominal amount of US$5 million due in September 2010, while a total of 1.6 million 

relates to principal repayments, due after December 31, 2008, for a loan of US$3 million 

nominal. Alongside current financial liabilities, the Group has additional financial liabilities of 5 

thousand attributable to forward foreign exchange transactions and 174 thousand in 

connection with interest rate swaps. Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge 

future customer sales denominated in a foreign currency in order to mitigate the risk of foreign 

exchange rate movements between this currency and the euro. Interest rate swaps are 

designed to hedge the risk of a change in the fair value of US dollar loans. 

Other financial obligations include 5.5 million from rental and lease agreements. Of this total, 

an amount of 1.7 million is due within one year. A total of 10.5 million in current obligations is 

attributable to investment projects already initiated. 

The financial assets mainly comprise cash and short-term bank deposits totalling 22.9 million, 

as well as assets of 338 thousand attributable to interest rate swaps and foreign currency 

forward contracts.  

Based on finance income of 0.8 million and finance cost of 0.7 million, net finance income 

amounted to 0.1 million in 2007, which was influenced by exchange rate movements. 

 

4. Financial Position 

Further improvement in equity ratio 

As at December 31, 2007, total Group assets (i.e. the balance sheet total) rose by 7.4 million 

to 233.8 million. The year-on-year change is mainly due to an expansion of inventories and 

receivables following the significant rise in sales volumes, as well as being driven by an 

increase in other assets.  

The SIMONA Group continued to invest in the expansion and modernisation of its production 

plant over the course of the 2007 financial year. In total, capital expenditure within this area 

amounted to 13.8 million. At the Ringsheim facility a new extension was completed for 

injection moulding operations, and two injection moulding machines with robot-controlled 

extraction and finishing technology were put into service. The production plant in Kirn was 

equipped with new sheet extrusion machines as well as a finishing unit for sheet products. The 

company also invested in new-generation tools. The additions to intangible assets were mainly 

attributable to software licences. 

Non-current assets comprise capitalised corporation tax credits of SIMONA AG amounting to 

5.3 million, the economic benefits of which will flow to the company as from December 31, 

2008. This is to be seen within the context of the Act Governing Tax Measures Accompanying 

the Introduction of the European Company and for the Change of other Tax Regulations 

(SEStEG), according to which the dividend-related reduction of corporation tax is no longer 

applicable for periods subsequent to 2006. In accordance with these legal provisions, the level 

of existing credits with a reducing effect on corporation tax was determined, and the entitlement 
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was recognised as an asset in the balance sheet as at December 31, 2007, in an amount 

equivalent to the present value. 

Raw materials and consumables fell slightly by 0.8 million to 15.6 million. 

Driven mainly by increased volumes, inventories of finished goods and merchandise rose by 

4.8 million to 40.0 million, the rationale behind this expansion being to safeguard future 

delivery capabilities.   

Despite the more expansive business activities, trade receivables remained largely unchanged. 

This was attributable to two factors. First, the company managed to improve customer payment 

cycles by pursuing a more stringent form of receivables management. Secondly, trade 

receivables had already expanded as early as the fourth quarter of 2006 following the takeover 

of the plastics business formerly operated by Deutsche Holzveredelung Alfons & Ewald 

Schmeing oHG.   

Within the area of "other assets", above all the company recorded an increase in bonus 

receivables and tax assets.  

The reduction in cash by 2.3 million to 22.9 million is discussed extensively in the cash flow 

statement. Group liquidity was safeguarded at all times during the period under review. 

Non-current pension provisions rose by 1 million year on year. Due to higher purchasing 

volumes, trade payables increased by 1.5 million. Equity expanded by 8.5 million to 148.3 

million, as a result of which the equity ratio rose to 63.4 per cent. 

 

5. Events after the Reporting Date 

Effective from January 1, 2008, SIMONA AG sold its ownership interest in Georg Fischer 

SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim, to Georg Fischer Rohrleitungssysteme AG, 

Schaffhausen (Switzerland). As regards the fluoropolymer market, SIMONA's main focus will 

be on expanding its business within the core sectors of chemicals and industry. Beyond this, 

there were no events of material significance to the state of affairs of SIMONA AG in the period 

between the end of the 2007 financial year and the preparation of this management report. In 

accordance with statutory provisions, interim announcements will be issued during 2008, 

outlining the development of the entity and any events that are subject to disclosure 

requirements. 

 

6. Risks of Future Development 

The risk management system of SIMONA AG controls the following material risks: risks relating 

to the general business environment and sector, financial risks and IT-specific risks. 

The risks associated with the general business environment and the sector in which the 

company operates relate mainly to the economic development of customer segments supplied 

by SIMONA. They also include price-specific risks due to fluctuating exchange rates and risks 

emanating from developments on the raw material markets. Owing to our broad range of 

products and thorough analysis of the market, we are able to mitigate these risks and respond 

to changes. In establishing our own production facilities in China and the Czech Republic, we 
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will also improve the company's flexibility when it comes to meeting new customer 

requirements at a global level. Price risks associated with exchange rates tend to increase in 

proportion to revenue generated outside the eurozone. The expansion of production in the 

United States and the establishment of the new plant in China have helped to scale back risks 

within this area. In addition, SIMONA addresses the issue of currency risk to the largest extent 

possible by deploying hedging instruments. Price risks relating to raw materials are again likely 

to be of particular significance in 2008. In view of the record prices achieved by crude oil in the 

first months of the year, we are anticipating higher procurement costs for raw materials in 2008. 

Substantial wage settlements may also be a source of potential risk to SIMONA's cost 

structures in 2008. 

Additionally, the risk of default has increased as a result of higher revenues.  In this context, 

thorough investigations in credit ratings and continuous monitoring within this area help to 

mitigate risk as a whole as well as risk associated with individually identifiable items. Default-

related risk associated with specific customers is limited by credit insurance and the cut-off of 

deliveries in the case of outstanding payments. The carrying amounts of inventories were 

assessed on a regular basis, and adjustments in the form of allowances were made for specific 

products. 

In our opinion, the company's overall risk situation has not changed materially in relation to the 

previous financial year. 

 

7. Report on Expected Developments  

Economic environment to remain stable for the time being 

The German, European and global economies will be exposed to more pronounced risks in 

2008. However, the actual repercussions of the subprime mortgage crisis are not likely to 

emerge fully until later in the year. Economic recession has become a probable scenario for the 

United States. At the very least, the US economy is bracing itself for a slowdown in growth in 

the coming years. Other risks include those emanating from the raw materials markets. The 

price of oil continued to rise at the beginning of 2008, a trend that we have also been 

witnessing in other raw material markets that are of relevance to industrial businesses. A further 

appreciation of the euro will have a detrimental effect on German exports, the outlook for which 

still remains optimistic. At the same time, rising inflation will have a tangible impact on the 

domestic economy. On the back of rising prices, there is also a greater risk of more expansive 

wage settlements, which may have an adverse effect on the economy. In view of mounting 

concerns over the future of the economy, the growth forecasts for Germany have been revised 

downwards in recent months. On the whole, however, general conditions for the German 

economy remain favourable. As regards SIMONA's business performance, future trends within 

the area of capital expenditure will be of particular importance. The dynamic investment activity 

seen in 2007 as regards new machinery and equipment will probably ebb away slightly. At the 

same time, however, companies are likely to be buoyed by high levels of capacity utilisation in 

conjunction with solid sales and profit outlooks. In addition, there is a solid order backlog from 

2007.  
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Further expansion of orders 

The first three months of the 2008 financial year have delivered a steady stream of demand 

and produced a year-on-year increase in the overall volume of sales for SIMONA AG.  

The target set by the SIMONA Group for the 2008 financial year as a whole is to expand sales 

volume by 5 per cent and generate revenue of 315 million. Within the area of chemical 

equipment and plant engineering the course of business will depend primarily on domestic 

demand. In view of the fact that the Group's domestic customers are highly export-oriented, the 

future performance of the European and global economy will be of key importance when it 

comes to attaining the above-mentioned goals. Growth within the area of piping systems is 

likely to be driven mainly by foreign sales. The newly created mechanical engineering and 

transport systems unit has provided SIMONA AG with a broader product range in key areas of 

the value creation chain and will contribute to the company's growth.  

 

Stabilising earnings despite cost-related pressures 

Despite the significant pressure exerted on the Group's gross margin as a result of spiralling 

raw material, energy and transport costs, SIMONA is committed, at the very least, to 

maintaining its financial performance at a stable level. The measures initiated in 2007 with the 

express purpose of raising efficiency levels and scaling back costs have already had a tangible 

effect and will continue to be pursued rigorously in the months ahead. Within this context, the 

plan is for SIMONA AMERICA to reach break-even in 2008 after the restructuring measures 

already initiated for this location. The construction of new facilities in China and the Czech 

Republic will necessitate substantial investments over the course of 2008. At the same time, 

however, this strategic move will allow us to improve significantly our supply capabilities within 

Asia and Europe in the medium term and continue our well-judged approach of international 

expansion.  

SIMONA is targeting an operating profit of 20 million. Business in the 2009 financial year is 

expected to progress at a comparable level, although this will depend to a large extent on the 

performance of the global economy, which at present is dominated by uncertainties. 

 

8. Other Information 

Employees  

As at December 31, 2007, the SIMONA Group employed 1,227 people, which represents a 

slight year-on-year increase in staffing levels (2006: 1,224). The average headcount was 1,224. 

Of the total number of personnel within the Group at the end of 2007, 1,031 staff members 

were employed by the AG (-16). Prompted by the more international nature of SIMONA's 

business, the headcount at subsidiaries based in Asia and North America rose from 69 to 87. 

The European subsidiaries accounted for 109 employees.  

Staffing levels at the AG contracted slightly, down 16 year on year, on the back of a significant 

rise in the headcount in 2006 following the takeover of the plastics business operated by 

Deutsche Holzveredelung Alfons & Ewald Schmeing oHG. SIMONA expanded its vocational 
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training programme for school-leavers in 2007. At the end of 2007, 63 (previous year: 61) 

young people were in apprenticeships relating to various technical or commercial disciplines. 

Seventeen apprentices successfully completed their vocational training in 2007, three of whom 

with distinction. In total, fourteen apprentices were offered positions with the company. In 

addition, three apprentices are attending part-time degree courses on the basis of the 

integrated educational programme introduced in 2001 in collaboration with the University of 

Applied Sciences Ludwigshafen. 

As in the past, a number of training seminars were organised during 2007 for the purpose of 

further improving staff qualifications. These measures included training for the respective 

product segments, cross-departmental seminars as well as subject-specific product and 

application workshops. In view of the more international nature of our business, we also 

focused on providing English lessons for staff members as well as intercultural seminars. 

Training also included computer courses centred around MS Office applications. In February 

2007, the Koblenz Chamber of Commerce and Industry presented SIMONA with an award in 

recognition of the company's exemplary staff training programme. 

The introduction of SAP within the area of production, sales and logistics at the company's 

headquarters was completed back in 2006. To a large extent, intracompany synergies and 

improvements in efficiency were realised as planned. In 2007, the focus was on implementing 

additional SAP subprojects at SIMONA production facilities. For instance, SAP was rolled out 

fully at Plant V, which is mainly responsible for the production of finished parts for the 

mechanical and transport engineering industries. Additionally, preparations were made for SAP 

deployment at the company's new site in Litvinov, Czech Republic.  

 

Quality and environmental management 

Alongside customer orientation, profitability and environmental protection, quality is one of the 

foremost corporate goals at SIMONA AG. In view of this, one of the key tasks of quality 

management in the year under review was to determine and monitor customer-specific 

requirements and assess conformity levels with the help of internal audits. 

Regular quality meetings were organised as part of quality and complaints reviews in all areas 

of the company and at all staff levels. The action plans and quality targets defined as part of 

these procedures were and continue to be essential tools used for the purpose of improving 

products and processes.  

The newly integrated Würdinghausen facility was incorporated into the company's quality 

management system; the certification audit in accordance with ISO 9001 was conducted in 

December 2007 without any departures. 

Conformity of SIMONA's QM system and products with the specified requirements was attested 

by certification bodies and by customers as part of several audits performed at the respective 

production sites. 

The company also continued to roll out a range of measures initiated within the area of 

environmental management. The declared objective within this area is to scale back energy 
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consumption and reduce production-related waste or deploy an appropriate recycling system 

for such materials. 

A pre-audit was carried out for the Würdinghausen site to establish its conformity with the 

environmental management provisions set out in ISO 14001. The certification audit will be 

conducted in 2008. 

 

Compensation Report  

Management Board compensation 

The Personnel Committee within the Supervisory Board is responsible for determining the level 

of compensation for the Management Board. The Personnel Committee consists of Hans-

Wilhelm Voss, Chairman of the Supervisory Board, as well as the Supervisory Board members 

Hans-Werner Marx and Roland Frobel. Compensation for the members of the Management 

Board of SIMONA AG is calculated on the basis of the size of the company, its commercial and 

financial position, as well as the level and structure of compensation granted to Management 

Board members of similar enterprises. In addition, the duties and the contribution of the 

respective members of the Board of Directors are taken into account.  

Management Board compensation is performance-based. It is comprised of a fixed level of 

remuneration as well as a variable component in the form of a bonus. Both of the 

aforementioned components are assessed on an annual basis. In addition, both components 

are subject to thorough analyses in intervals of two to three years, based on a comparison with 

compensation figures applicable to executive staff of similar enterprises. The most recent 

assessment was conducted in 2007. 

The fixed component of compensation is paid as a salary on a monthly basis. In addition, the 

members of the Management Board receive a bonus, the level of which is dependent on 

attaining specific financial targets which are mainly calculated on the basis of the company's 

revenue and earnings performance. Total compensation for the Management Board amounted 

to 1,081 thousand (previous year: 1,015 thousand). This figure was comprised of 691 

thousand in fixed-level compensation and 390 thousand in bonus payments. The company 

does not grant loans to members of the Management Board. There are no share option plans 

or other share-based compensation programmes in place for members of the Management 

Board. 

The company's Articles of Association contain no provisions that are non-compliant with those 

set out in the German Stock Corporation Act as regards the conditions applicable to the 

appointment or removal of Management Board members as well as amendments to the 

company's Articles of Association. In view of this, readers are asked to refer to the relevant 

statutory provisions set out in Sections 84, 85, 133 and 179 of the German Stock Corporation 

Act (Aktiengesetz – AktG) for further details. 

Remuneration for the former members of the Management Board amounted to 782 thousand 

(previous year: 778 thousand). Pension provisions for active and former members of the 

Management Board were recognised to the full extent and amounted to 10,073 thousand as at 

December 31, 2007 (previous year: 10,913 thousand). 
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Supervisory Board compensation 

Supervisory Board compensation is calculated according to the size of the company, as well as 

the duties and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board members. The Chairman and the 

Deputy Chairman as well as members involved in Committees receive supplementary 

compensation. 

Members of the Supervisory Board receive a standard fixed level of compensation amounting 

to 10,000. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board receives an amount equivalent to double 

the standard level of compensation; the Deputy Chairman receives an amount equivalent to 

one and a half times the standard level of compensation. Supervisory Board members who are 

engaged in Committee work receive supplementary compensation of 5,000. All expenses 

associated directly with a position on the Supervisory Board, as well as sales tax, are 

reimbursed. 

In addition to fixed compensation, the General Meeting shall be authorised to pass a resolution 

on a variable component of compensation, payment of which shall be dependent on whether 

specific corporate performance indicators have been met or exceeded. At the Annual General 

Meeting of Shareholders on June 29, 2007, no such resolution for variable compensation 

components was passed for the 2007 financial year. 

Supervisory Board compensation for 2007 amounted to 128 thousand (previous year: 124 

thousand). The company does not grant loans to members of the Supervisory Board. There are 

no share option plans or other share-based compensation programmes in place for members of 

the Supervisory Board. 

 

Shareholder structure, shareholdings of the Management Board and Supervisory Board 

as well as investments subject to disclosure 

At the balance sheet date, the share capital of SIMONA AG was 15.5 million, divided into 

600,000 bearer shares. All shares are categorised as no-par-value shares ("Stückaktien" 

governed by German law). There are no restrictions with regard to share transfer or voting 

rights. An 18.66 per cent interest is held by Anita Bürkle (Kirn), a 12.13 per cent interest by Dr. 

Wolfgang und Anita Bürkle Stiftung, an 11.64 per cent interest by Dirk Möller (Kirn), an 11.41 

per cent interest by Regine Tegtmeyer (Seelze), a 10.67 per cent interest by Kreissparkasse 

Biberach (Biberach), a 10.0 per cent interest by SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft 

mbH (Kirn) and a 6.67 per cent interest by Rossmann Beteiligungs GmbH (Burgwedel). The 

remaining 18.82 per cent of shares in the company are in free float. 

As at June 29, 2007, members of the Management Board reported a total holding of 69,826 

own shares; this corresponds to 11.64 per cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG. According 

to the notification of June 29, 2007, members of the Supervisory Board held a total of 2,800 

shares. This corresponds to an interest of 0.467 per cent in share capital. 
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Closing statement 

We hereby declare that to the best of our knowledge the management report conveys the 

course of business, the financial performance and the material opportunities and risks 

associated with the expected development of the SIMONA Group. 

 

Kirn, April 1, 2008 

 

Wolfgang Moyses Dirk Möller Jochen Feldmann 
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Group Balance Sheet of SIMONA AG 

 

 

Assets Notes 31/12/07 31/12/06* 

in  '000    

 Intangible assets [17] 2,524 3,612 

 Property, plant and equipment [18] 85,735 87,032 

 Financial assets  23 29 

 Non-current tax assets [14] 5,348 5,837 

 Deferred tax assets [14] 545 615 

Non-current assets  94,175 97,125 

 Inventories [19] 55,679 51,627 

 Trade receivables [20] 47,449 47,609 

 Other assets and  [21] 9,191 4,788 

 prepaid expenses    

 Derivative financial instruments  338 115 

 Cash [22] 22,875 25,151 

Current assets  135,532 129,290 

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale [7] 4,082 0 

Total assets  233,789 226,415 

  

   

Equity and liabilities Notes 31/12/07 31/12/06* 

in  '000    

Equity attributable to owners of the parent    

 Issued capital  15,500 15,474 

 Capital reserves  15,274 15,032 

 Revenue reserves  118,833 109,320 

 Other reserves  (1,499) (223) 

  148,108 139,603 

Minority interests  227 204 

Equity [23] 148,335 139,807 

 Financial liabilities [24] 4,991 5,821 

 Provisions for pensions [25] 35,025 34,010 

 Other provisions [27] 6,221 5,888 

 Other liabilities  258 299 

 Deferred tax liabilities [14] 8,074 10,284 

Non-current liabilities  54,569 56,302 

 Financial liabilities [24] 305 353 

 Provisions for pensions [25] 1,496 1,475 

 Other provisions [27] 3,457 2,444 
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 Trade payables  11,978 10,536 

 Income tax liabilities  554 2,516 

 Other liabilities and deferred income  11,787 12,818 

 Derivative financial instruments  179 164 

Current liabilities  29,756 30,306 

Liabilities related to assets  

held for sale 

[7] 1,129 0 

Total assets  233,789 226,415 

 

* Some of the amounts may differ due to reclassifications implemented as part of the application of IFRS 7 for the 

2006 financial year. 
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Group Income Statement of SIMONA AG 

  

 

 

 Notes 01/01-

31/12/07 

01/01-

31/12/06 

in  '000    

Revenue [9] 299,881 262,776 

Other operating income  4,694 3,508 

Changes in inventories of finished goods [19] 4,813 3,367 

Cost of materials  174,942 149,775 

Staff costs [10] 58,130 52,076 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, and 

amortisation of intangible assets 

[17] + [18] 12,805 13,167 

Other operating expenses [12] 43,788 39,775 

Finance income [13] 763 830 

Finance costs [13] 653 563 

Profit before income taxes  19,833 15,125 

Income taxes [14] 5,688 (1,041) 

Profit for the year  14,145 16,166 

    

     

of which attributable to:    

owners of the parent  14,118 16,146 

minority interests  27 20 

    

    

Earnings per share: in     

– basic, calculated on the basis of profit for the year 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company 

[15] 23.53 26.96 

– diluted, calculated on the basis of profit for the year 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company 

[15] 23.53 26.96 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of SIMONA AG 

 

 

 

[1] Company information 

SIMONA AG is a stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) founded in Germany – registered office 

at Teichweg 16, 55606 Kirn, Germany. Its shares are traded within the General Standard of the 

Frankfurt and Berlin Stock Exchanges.  

The activities of SIMONA AG mainly include the production and sale of semi-finished products 

in the form of sheets, rods, welding rods, pipes and fittings made of thermoplastics.  

Semi-finished products are manufactured at facilities in Kirn, Kirchhundem-Würdinghausen, 

Hilchenbach-Lützel (Germany) and Hazleton (USA); pipes are produced at a facility in 

Ringsheim (Germany) and fittings at facilities in Ringsheim and Litvinov (Czech Republic). The 

products are marketed under the joint SIMONA brand as well as a range of separate brands. 

SIMONA AG maintains a sales office in Möhlin/Switzerland. 

In addition, distribution is conducted via subsidiaries in the United Kingdom (SIMONA UK 

Limited, Stafford/United Kingdom), France (SIMONA S.A., Domont/France), Italy (SIMONA 

s.r.l., Vimodrone/Italy), Spain (SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona/Spain), 

Poland (SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wroc aw/Poland, DEHOPLAST Polska Sp. z o.o., 

Kwdizyn/Poland), Czech Republic (SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o., Prague/Czech Republic), 

Hong Kong (SIMONA Far East Ltd., Hong Kong/China), China (SIMONA Engineering Plastics 

Trading Co. Ltd, Shanghai/China) and the United States (SIMONA AMERICA Inc., 

Hazleton/USA). 

The subsidiary SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov/Czech Republic, commenced its 

operational business activities in 2007 and has been included in the consolidated financial 

statements for the first time. 

 

[2] Accounting policies 

Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the historical cost principle, with the 

exception of derivative financial instruments and available-for-sale financial assets, which are 

measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euro. Unless 

otherwise stated, all amounts are rounded to  '000. 
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Statement of compliance with IFRS 

The consolidated financial statements of SIMONA AG and the entities included in the 

consolidated group for the period ended December 31, 2007, have been prepared in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) applicable at the 

reporting date, as adopted by the European Union, and the provisions of commercial law to be 

applied additionally pursuant to Section 315a(1) of the German Commercial Code 

(Handelsgesetzbuch – HGB).  

The term "IFRS" comprises all International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 

International Accounting Standards (IAS) to be applied on a mandatory basis as at the 

reporting date. Additionally, all interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) – formerly Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) – were 

applied insofar as their application was mandatory for the 2007 financial year. 

The Group balance sheet conforms with the presentation requirements of IAS 1. Various items 

reported in the income statement and the balance sheet have been aggregated for the purpose 

of improving the overall clarity of presentation. These items are disclosed and discussed 

separately in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

 

Principles of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of SIMONA AG and its 

subsidiaries for each financial year ended December 31. The financial statements of SIMONA 

AG and the subsidiaries are prepared using uniform accounting policies for the same reporting 

period. 

All intragroup balances (receivables, liabilities, provisions), transactions, income and expenses 

as well as profits and losses from transactions between consolidated entities ("intercompany 

profits") are eliminated as part of consolidation.  

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated effective from the acquisition date, which is the date on 

which the Group effectively obtains control. Inclusion in the consolidated financial statements 

ends as soon as the parent ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Pursuant to IFRS 3, all business combinations shall be accounted for on the basis of the 

purchase method, according to which the identifiable assets acquired as well as the liabilities 

and contingent liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value. The excess of the cost of 

the combination over the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable 

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill and is subject to regular 

impairment testing. If the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 

liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, a 

reassessment is performed in respect of the identification and measurement of the acquiree’s 

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, and any excess remaining after that 

assessment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.  

Minority interests are disclosed separately in the Group income statement and within equity of 

the Group balance sheet. 
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[3] New financial reporting standards 

New financial reporting standards to be applied by entities 

The IASB made several amendments to existing International Financial Reporting Standards, 

as well as introducing new IFRS and Interpretations issued by the International Financial 

Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) that are to be applied by entities for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2007, unless otherwise specified. The following 

section provides a brief summary of the respective changes or newly issued standards to the 

extent that they are of relevance to the consolidated financial statements, as well as a 

description of the effects on measurement and recognition within the consolidated financial 

statements of the company. 

 

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

This Standard requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable 

users of financial statements to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for the entity's 

financial position and performance and the nature and extent of risks arising from financial 

instruments to which the entity is exposed. The disclosures relating thereto can be found 

throughout the financial statements. The application of this standard has had no effect on the 

net assets, financial position and results of operations, i.e. performance, financial position and 

change in financial position, of the Group. The relevant comparative information has been 

adjusted accordingly.  

 

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendment to IAS 1 includes new requirements for the disclosure of an entity's objectives, 

policies and processes for managing capital. 

 

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 

Under IFRIC 9, an entity shall assess whether an embedded derivative is required to be 

separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative when the entity first 

becomes a party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a 

change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise 

would be required under the contract, in which case reassessment is required. As the Group 

had no embedded derivatives to be separated from the host contract, this Interpretation had no 

effect on the Group's financial performance, financial position and change in financial position. 

 

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment 

The Group applied IFRIC Interpretation 10 effective from January 1, 2007. The consensus 

under IFRIC 10 is that an entity shall not reverse an impairment loss recognised in a previous 

interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument or a 

financial asset carried at cost. The Group performed no reversals of recognised impairment 
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losses in the interim reporting period, and therefore this Interpretation had no effect on the 

Group's financial performance, financial position and change in financial position. 

 

Financial reporting standards to be applied by entities in the future  

In addition to the aforementioned IFRS to be applied by entities for the 2007 financial year, the 

IASB issued or amended several other IFRS and IFRIC which have already undergone the 

endorsement process of the European Union but will not become applicable until a later date. 

 

IFRS 8 Operating Segments 

IFRS 8 was issued in November 2006 and must be applied by entities for annual periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2009. IFRS 8 requires the disclosure of information relating to 

a Group's operating segments and replaces the provision that specified the presentation of 

primary and secondary segment reporting for an entity. IFRS 8 is centred around the so-called 

management approach, according to which segment reporting shall be based solely on 

financial information used by an entity's decision-making bodies for the purpose of internal 

management of the entity. Within this context, the key areas of significance relate to the internal 

reporting and organisational structure of an entity as well as to those elements of financial data 

that are relied upon in decision-making processes regarding the allocation of resources or the 

assessment of an entity's performance. Segment reporting may be subject to change as a 

result of IFRS 8. 

Additionally, the IASB and IFRIC made amendments to five existing standards (IAS 1 – 

Presentation of Financial Statements, IAS 23 – Borrowing Costs, IAS 27 – International 

Accounting Standard 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IFRS 2 – Share-

based Payment, IFRS 3 – Business Combinations) and issued three new interpretations (IFRIC 

12 – Service Concession Arrangements, IFRIC 13 – Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 14 

– IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 

Interaction), which have yet to undergo the appropriate endorsement process of the European 

Union. Therefore, SIMONA AG is not permitted to apply these standards on a voluntary basis 

for an earlier annual period. The amendments to these standards shall be applied for annual 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009. By contrast, the new interpretations shall be 

applied at the earliest for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008. In the event of 

an EU endorsement, application of said standards and interpretations, particularly IFRS 3 

(Business Combinations) and IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements), may have an effect 

on recognition, measurement and reporting. 

 

[4] Material judgements and estimates 

Judgements 

When applying the accounting policies, the management made the following judgements with 

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Within this 

context, decisions containing estimates have not been taken into account. 
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Significant estimates include, among other things, judgements relating to the classification of 

leases, the recognition of provisions, the estimation of useful lives of non-current assets and 

the evaluation of impairment to trade receivables, inventories as well as deferred tax assets. 

 

Uncertainties relating to estimates 

The following section outlines the most important forward-looking assumptions as well as other 

material uncertainty regarding the use of estimates, applicable at the reporting date, as a result 

of which there is a significant risk that the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities may require 

material adjustments within the coming financial year. 

 

Impairment of goodwill 

The Group performs impairment tests for goodwill at least once per year. This requires 

estimates to be made with regard to the value in use of cash-generating units to which goodwill 

is allocated. For the purpose of estimating the value in use, the Group has to determine, on the 

basis of estimates, the projected cash flows associated with the cash-generating unit, as well 

as selecting an appropriate discount rate in order to determine the present value of the 

aforementioned cash flows. As at December 31, 2007, the carrying amount of goodwill was 

143 thousand (prev. year: 143 thousand). 

 

Deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the carryforward of unused tax losses to the extent that 

it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can 

be utilised. The process of determining the level of deferred tax assets requires significant 

judgement by the management with regard to the timing and amount of future taxable profit as 

well as the future tax planning strategies. For further details, please refer to Note 14. 

 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised in accordance with the accounting policies discussed in Note 27. In 

determining the level of provisions, the management is required to make significant judgements 

as to the timing and the amounts of future outflow of resources. 

 

Pensions 

Expenses relating to defined benefit plans are determined on the basis of actuarial methods. 

Actuarial valuation is conducted on the basis of assumptions in respect of discount rates, future 

salary increases, mortality and future pension increases. In view of the long-term orientation of 

such plans, these estimates are associated with significant uncertainty. For further details, 

please refer to Note 25. 
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[5] Summary of significant accounting policies 

Interests in a joint venture 

SIMONA AG holds an interest in Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, 

Ettenheim, which is a jointly controlled entity (joint venture). The Group accounts for its interest 

in the joint venture by applying proportionate consolidation. The financial statements of the joint 

venture are prepared using uniform accounting policies for the same financial year as the 

financial statements of the parent company. Any differences arising in connection with these 

accounting policies are eliminated by means of appropriate adjustments. 

When the venturer contributes or sells assets to the joint venture, recognition of any portion of a 

gain or loss from the transaction reflects the substance of the transaction. When the venturer 

purchases assets from a joint venture, the venturer does not recognise its share of the profits of 

the joint venture from the transaction until it resells the assets to an independent party. 

The joint venture is included in the consolidated financial statements, applying the method of 

proportionate consolidation, until such time as the Group's joint control over the joint venture 

ceases. 

 

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale as well as liabilities related to 

assets held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are reported separately in the balance sheet as "held 

for sale" if they are available for immediate sale and their sale is highly probable. Non-current 

assets and disposal groups classified as "held for sale" are measured at the lower of their 

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. In accordance with their classification, 

liabilities directly related to an asset held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities 

in the balance sheet. 

 

Currency translation 

Annual financial statements prepared by the consolidated Group entities in a foreign currency 

are translated on the basis of the functional currency method. The functional currency is the 

currency of the primary economic environment in which the entities operate, which in the case 

of the Group companies of SIMONA AG is the respective local currency. The consolidated 

financial statements are prepared in euro.  

Those foreign entities whose functional currencies differ from the euro have been presented 

below, together with details of their functional currency: 

 SIMONA UK Ltd., Stafford, United Kingdom  – Pound Sterling 

 SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wroc aw/Poland – Polish Zloty 

 DEHOPLAST Polska Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland – Polish Zloty 

 SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ s.r.o, Prague, Czech Republic – Czech Koruna 

 SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic – Czech Koruna 

 SIMONA FAR EAST Ltd., Hong Kong, China – Hong Kong Dollar 
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 SIMONA ASIA Ltd., Hong Kong, China – Hong Kong Dollar 

 SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Hazleton, USA – US Dollar 

 64 North Conahan Drive Holding LLC, Hazleton, USA – US Dollar 

 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING Co. Ltd., Shanghai, China – Renminbi 

 SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS Co. Ltd., Jiangmen, China – Renminbi 

 

The items accounted for in the respective financial statements are measured on the basis of 

the functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are translated initially between the 

functional currency and the foreign currency at the arithmetic mean rate applicable on the day 

of the transaction. All exchange differences are recorded in profit or loss for the period. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost of purchase or conversion in a foreign 

currency are translated at the foreign exchange rate applicable on the day of the transaction. 

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in the foreign currency are translated at the 

rate that was prevailing at the time the fair value was determined. 

In the consolidated financial statements expenses and income associated with financial 

statements of subsidiaries prepared in a foreign currency are translated on the basis of the 

year-average exchange rate, whereas assets and liabilities are translated on the basis of the 

closing rate. Exchange differences arising from the translation of equity as well as exchange 

differences arising from the use of exchange rates in the income statement that differ from 

those used for the translation of balance sheet items are recognised in other reserves.  

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences 

accounted for in respect of the foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Property, plant and equipment 

All items classified as property, plant and equipment are used for operational purposes and are 

measured at cost less depreciation on a systematic basis. Depreciation of property, plant and 

equipment is performed on a straight-line basis in accordance with the pattern of use of such 

items. To the extent that depreciable assets of property, plant and equipment have different 

useful lives, they are depreciated separately. 

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment as soon as 

there are indications that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The residual values of assets as well as the useful lives and depreciation methods are 

assessed at the end of each financial year and are adjusted where necessary. 

 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
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Intangible assets 

Acquired and internally generated intangible assets are capitalised in accordance with IAS 38 if 

it is probable that the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits and the costs of 

the intangible asset can be reliably measured. They are measured at cost of purchase or 

conversion. Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised on the basis of the length of 

that useful life. Amortisation of intangible assets, with the exception of capitalised development 

costs, is performed over a useful life of between three and five years. Intangible assets with 

indefinite useful lives are regularly assessed for impairment. In the case of impairment, they are 

adjusted to their recoverable amount. 

 

Research and development costs 

The research and development activities conducted by SIMONA AG are directed principally at 

the optimisation of production and manufacturing processes (advancement within the area of 

production engineering), at changes and improvements to formulae, some of which have been 

in existence for an extensive period of time, or at fundamental improvements for the purpose of 

meeting specified quality and inspection requirements, including new testing procedures and 

new areas of application. Generally, these activities do not involve the development of an 

entirely new product that would sever the link with existing formulae and manufacturing 

processes. 

To the extent that research and development activities provide the basis for a product that is 

technically feasible and from which the Group can generate future economic benefits, the 

period attributable to general research activities constitutes the major part thereof. The scale of 

development expenses arising after the product has been made marketable is negligible. In 

consideration of the principle of materiality the intangible asset is not capitalised in such cases. 

This approach does not adversely effect the true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs as 

regards financial performance, financial position and cash flows. 

In addition, SIMONA AG does not capitalise development costs to the extent that costs 

(expenditure) cannot be reliably allocated to development projects. The costs are recognised 

as expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

There were no development projects resulting in the capitalisation of intangible assets in 2007 

or 2006. 

 

Impairment of assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may 

be impaired. If such indications are present or an annual impairment test of an asset is 

required, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount.  

 

Investments and other financial assets 

Financial assets within the meaning of IAS 39 are classified either as financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss, as loans and receivables, as held-to-maturity investments or as 
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available-for-sale financial assets. On initial recognition the financial assets are measured at 

fair value. Additionally, in the case of financial assets other than those classified as at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset are 

accounted for accordingly. The designation of financial assets to the respective measurement 

categories occurs upon initial recognition. To the extent that they are permitted and necessary, 

reclassifications are performed at the end of the financial year. 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are accounted for at the date of 

settlement. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a 

contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally 

by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. 

The group of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprises financial assets held 

for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired principally for the 

purpose of selling it in the near term. Derivates, including embedded derivatives accounted for 

separately, are also classified as held for trading, with the exception of those derivatives that 

are designated and effective hedging instruments. Gains and losses on financial assets held for 

trading are recognised in profit or loss.  

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that an 

entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity 

investments. After initial recognition held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when 

the financial asset is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

that are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition loans and receivables are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairments where 

applicable. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are 

derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated 

as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity 

investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. After initial recognition 

available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses on available-

for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity. If an available-for-sale financial asset 

is derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is 

recognised in profit or loss. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded within organised markets is determined on the 

basis of the market price quoted at the reporting date. The fair value of financial instruments for 

which no active market exists is determined on the basis of valuation techniques. Valuation 

techniques include using recent arm's length market transactions between knowledgeable, 

willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is 

substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation models. 

Held-to-maturity investments as well as loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost. 

The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract 
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that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums 

or discounts, minus any reduction for impairments. 

A financial asset (or a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is 

derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group determines at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective 

evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective 

evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been 

incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's 

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 

financial asset's original effective interest rate, i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial 

recognition. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. 

The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the 

amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 

event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 

loss is reversed. However, the new carrying amount must not exceed the amortised cost at the 

date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. 

If in the case of trade receivables there is objective evidence that not all due amounts will be 

received in accordance with the agreed invoicing terms and conditions (e.g. likelihood of an 

insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the obligor), the carrying amount is reduced 

through use of an allowance account. Receivables are derecognised when they are considered 

to be uncollectible. 

 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of purchase or conversion cost and current cost or net 

realisable value.  

The inventories associated with consumables have been capitalised at average historical cost. 

As part of Group accounting, the cost of raw materials is assigned mainly by using the first-in, 

first-out (FIFO) method. Finished goods are measured at manufacturing cost (cost of 

conversion) according to item-by-item calculations based on current operational accounting, in 

addition to the directly related cost of direct material and units of production, this item also 

includes special production costs as well as production and material overheads, including 

depreciation. Financing costs are not accounted for in the cost of conversion. All identifiable 

risks associated with inventories, particularly relating to holding periods in excess of average 

duration, diminished usability and net realisable value, are recognised by an appropriate write-

down. 

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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Treasury shares 

Any treasury shares acquired by the Group are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is 

recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the entity's own 

equity instruments. 

 

Interest-bearing borrowings 

On initial recognition, loans are measured at the fair value of the consideration received, having 

deducted the transaction costs relating to the origination of the loan. After initial recognition 

interest-bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or when it expires.  

 

Cash 

Cash recognised in the balance sheet comprises cash on hand, bank balances and short-term 

deposits with original maturities of less than three months. 

As regards the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the 

aforementioned cash items in addition to overdrafts used by the Group and securities that are 

readily convertible to cash. 

 

Other provisions 

Other provisions are recognised when an obligation exists towards a third party, settlement of 

this obligation is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the required 

provision. Other provisions are measured at aggregate costs. Long-term provisions with more 

than one year to maturity are recognised at their discounted settlement value as at the 

reporting date. 

 

Pensions 

The Group has direct pension plans as well as one indirect pension plan. The indirect pension 

plan is serviced by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, which manages the plan assets. The plan 

assets are accounted for in the Group balance sheet such that the fair value of those assets of 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft 

mbH that fulfil the requirements for plan assets are deducted from the benefit obligation of the 

Group (funding company) when measuring the pension provision to be recognised. As the 

requirements for plan assets specified in IAS 19.7 have been fulfilled, the deduction of the plan 

assets from the obligation of the Group does not give rise to an obligation to consolidate on the 

part of SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der 

Belegschaft mbH because their sole purpose is to service the pension obligations. 

Provisions for pensions are accounted for on the basis of the Projected Unit Credit Method 

(sometimes known as the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years 
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of service method) (IAS 19). As part of this process, besides pensions and benefits known at 

the reporting date, expected future increases in salaries and pensions are accounted for with 

sufficient reliability. The calculation is based on actuarial reports that take into account specific 

biometric data. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense if the net 

cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period 

exceeded the greater of 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date 

(before deducting plan assets) and 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date.  

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period plus any actuarial gains (less any 

actuarial losses) not recognised minus any past service cost not yet recognised minus the fair 

value at the end of the reporting period of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be 

settled directly.   

 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a 

transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Additionally, the following conditions must be satisfied for the recognition of revenue. 

a) Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and 

rewards of ownership of the goods. 

b) Interest 

Revenue is recognised using the effective interest method when the interest arises. 

 

Taxes 

a) Current tax assets and current tax liabilities 

Current tax liabilities and current tax assets for current and prior periods are measured at the 

amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities, using the tax rates 

and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 

period. 

b) Deferred taxes  

Deferred taxes are recognised for all temporary differences between the carrying amount of an 

asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base as well as in connection with 

consolidation procedures. Additionally, a deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible 

temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 

which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 

the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
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c) Value added tax 

Sales revenues, expenses and assets are recognised after deduction of value added tax. 

 

Derivative financial instruments and hedging instruments 

Derivate financial instruments are used solely for hedging purposes in order to mitigate 

currency and interest rate risks arising from operating business. Under IAS 39, all derivative 

financial instruments, such as interest rate, currency and foreign exchange forward contracts 

as well as currency options, are to be carried at fair value, irrespective of the purpose such 

transactions have been entered into by the entity.  

The derivative financial instruments do not fulfil the restrictive requirements of IAS 39 applying 

to the recognition of hedging relationships. Therefore, gains and losses arising from a change 

in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated on the basis of market data and 

generally accepted valuation methodologies. The market changes associated with derivative 

financial instruments are reported in the results. 

 

[6] Business combinations 

Company acquisition in 2007 

On June 11, 2007, the SIMONA Group, acting through SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., acquired 

the plastic fittings operations of PTE Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, as part of an asset deal. The 

object of the acquired business segment is the production of plastic fittings. 

The acquisition encompassed the movable and immovable non-current assets attributable to 

property, plant and equipment, as well as the existing raw materials and consumables. The 

employees were taken over within the framework of the acquisition. 

The cost attributable to the business combination was 650 thousand, which is equivalent to 

the purchase price of the acquired assets. The costs associated with the acquisition were paid 

fully at the reporting date from cash resources held by SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o. 

The fair values of the identifiable assets at the date of acquisition and the total cost of 

acquisition are outlined below: 

Fair value at date of acquisition  in  '000 

Non-current assets (property, plant, equipment) 645 

Current assets 5 

Net assets acquired 650 

Total cost of acquisition 650 

Difference 0 

 

The business combination contributed an amount of minus 13 thousand to the consolidated 

profit for the year. Due to the absence of data for this separate business segment prior to the 

date of acquisition, the company is not in a position to determine what the extent of revenue 
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and earnings would have been at Group level if the business combination had been executed 

at the beginning of the year.  

 

Company acquisitions in 2006 

On October 1, 2006, SIMONA AG acquired, as part of an asset deal, the plastics division of 

Deutsche Holzveredelung Alfons & Ewald Schmeing oHG, Kirchhundem-Würdinghausen, 

comprising the two product groups "dehoplast" and "frisylen". The object of the plastics division 

is the production and sale of semi-finished plastics, accessories made of plastic, sliding rails 

and profiles. 

The acquisition encompassed the movable non-current assets attributable to property, plant 

and equipment, in addition to raw materials and consumables, work in progress and finished 

goods as well as merchandise, including all intangible assets attributable to operations. The 

acquisition also included staff members employed within the plastics division. 

The cost attributable to the business combination was 5,733 thousand. It included the 

purchase price for assets acquired, amounting to 5,695 thousand, and the costs directly 

attributable to the business combination, amounting to 38 thousand. The costs of acquisition 

were paid fully from cash resources of SIMONA AG, with the exception of the liability of 757 

thousand recognised as at the reporting date of December 31, 2006. 

The fair values of the identifiable assets at the date of acquisition and the total cost of 

acquisition are outlined below: 

 

Fair value at date of acquisition  in  '000 

Non-current assets 2,723 

Current assets 3,071 

Net assets acquired 5,794 

Total cost of acquisition 5,733 

Negative goodwill 61 

 

Analysis of the acquired intangible assets (order backlog, proprietary rights and customer 

relations) produced no amounts of a material nature. In view of the negligible effect on financial 

performance, financial position and cash flows, the decision was made not to present these 

items separately. 

Negative goodwill of 61 thousand was recognised as other operating income in the 2006 

financial year. 

Owing to the integration of accounting procedures within SIMONA AG, the company is not in a 

position to determine separately the proportionate contribution of the acquired plastics division 

to the consolidated profit of the Group. Due to the absence of data for this separate business 

segment prior to the date of acquisition, the company is not able to determine what the extent 

of revenue and profit would have been at Group level if the business combination had been 

executed at the beginning of the year. 
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On October 1, 2006, SIMONA AG acquired a 51% interest in DEHOPLAST Polska Sp. z o.o., 

Kwidzyn/Poland, which markets semi-finished plastics and other plastic products. 

The cost attributable to the business combination was 50 thousand and comprised the 

purchase price in respect of the ownership interests as well as costs directly attributable to the 

business combination. As at the reporting date of December 31, 2006, the costs of acquisition 

were recognised as a liability in the amount of 50 thousand. At the beginning of the 2007 

financial year, they were paid in full from cash resources held by SIMONA AG. 

At the date of acquisition the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of DEHOPLAST 

Polska Sp. z o.o. as well as the aggregate acquisition costs were as follows: 

 

Fair value at date of acquisition  in  '000 

Non-current assets 4 

Current assets 388 

Current liabilities 267 

Minority interests 61 

Net assets acquired 64 

Total cost of acquisition 50 

Negative goodwill 14 

 

Negative goodwill of 14 thousand was recognised as other operating income in the 2006 

financial year. 

As of October 1, 2006, the 51% interest acquired in DEHOPLAST Polska Sp. z o.o. contributed 

earnings of 9 thousand to the consolidated profit for the Group (2006). If the business 

combination had occurred effective from the beginning of the financial year, the annual profit for 

the Group would have amounted to 16,177 (+ 11 thousand). 
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[7] Interests in a joint venture / Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale as 

well as liabilities related to assets held for sale 

 

Joint venture 

SIMONA AG holds an interest of 50 per cent in Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products 

GmbH, headquartered in Ettenheim. The joint venture is operated as a jointly controlled entity. 

 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Non-current assets 2,196 2,284 

Current assets 1,886 1,610 

Total assets 4,082 3,894 

Equity 2,327 2,170 

Non-current liabilities 176 155 

Current liabilities 1,579 1,569 

Total liabilities 1,755 1,724 

Income 6,811 7,365 

Expense 6,654 7,177 

 

Assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale as well as liabilities related to 

assets held for sale 

On November 15, 2007, the Management Board of SIMONA AG, in concert with the 

Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG, passed a resolution for the disposal of the ownership 

interests in Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH. The entity produces and 

markets plastic pipes and fittings made of the fluorpolymer PVDF. The business trends 

associated with this specific product group are subject to significant fluctuations and cyclic 

movements. It would have been extremely difficult to plan and achieve real growth and 

sustainable profitability against this backdrop. 

At December 31, 2007, the closing negotiations for the sale of these ownership interests had 

not yet been completed. Therefore, as at December 31, 2007, Georg Fischer SIMONA 

Fluorpolymer Products GmbH was classified as a group of assets held for sale.  

At December 31, 2007, the principal groups of assets and liabilities of Georg Fischer SIMONA 

Fluorpolymer Products GmbH classified as held for sale – before consolidation procedures – 

were as follows: 
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2007 in  '000 

 Property, plant and equipment 2,196 

Non-current assets 2,196 

 Inventories 858 

 Receivables and other assets 990 

 Prepaid expenses 38 

Current assets 1,886 

Total assets 4,082 

  

 Long-term provisions 176 

Non-current liabilities 176 

 Trade payables 207 

 Liabilities to other long-term investees and investors 618 

 Other current liabilities 754 

Current liabilities 1,579 

Total liabilities 1,755 

 

[8] Segment reporting 

In accordance with IAS 14, the activities of the SIMONA Group are categorised by region as 

the primary reporting format and by product area as the secondary reporting format. 

Segmentation is based on internal organisational, controlling and reporting structures.  

The activities of the SIMONA Group can be broken down into those attributable to Germany, 

the Rest of Europe, as well as Asia and America, including Australia. The SIMONA Group 

produces and markets semi-finished plastics and pipes, including fittings. 

As a matter of course, segment information is based on the same principles of presentation and 

the same accounting policies as those applied to the consolidated financial statements. 

Receivables, liabilities, revenues and expenses as well as profit/loss between the individual 

segments are eliminated as part of reconciliation. Internal transfer pricing between the business 

segments is determined on the basis of competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated third 

parties. 

In the case of segment information by region, external sales revenue relates to the country in 

which the customer is domiciled. The segment result refers to the result from operating 

activities before the effects of financing activities and excluding income tax effects. Capital 

expenditure relates to additions to intangible assets as well as property, plant and equipment. 

Segment assets and segment liabilities comprise assets and liabilities that contribute to the 

achievement of operating profit. Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets relate to 

both intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. 

The following tables include information relating to revenues and profit or loss as well as 

specific information regarding assets and liabilities of the regional segments or product areas of 

the Group for the financial years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. 
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Segment assets and segment liabilities differ from disclosures in the balance sheet in terms of 

income tax items and cash. Data presented in respect of earnings is based on EBIT.   

 

Segment information – SIMONA Group for the 2007 financial year    

Segmentation by 

region 

Germany Rest of Europe and 

Africa 

Asia, America and 

Australia 

Eliminations Group 

in  '000 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 

Revenue from sales 
to external customers 114,900 97,462 151,277 133,291 34,533 36,230 (829) (4,207) 299,881 262,776 

Revenue from sales 

to other segments 1,195 966 58,635 45,960 9,405 7,328 (69,235) (54,254) 0 0 

Segment revenue         299,881 262,776 

Segment profit/loss 11,299 7,210 9,801 6,188 (1,377) 1,464 0 (4) 19,723 14,858 

Segment assets 148,620 151,528 28,003 25,337 21,465 17,080   198,088 193,945 

Segment liabilities 62,884 60,634 4,067 4,498 8,263 8,360   75,214 73,492 

Segment capital 

expenditure 

9,256 10,795 1,923 393 2,646 7,662   13,825 18,850 

Depreciation/amortis

ation 

11,955 12,640 323 241 527 286   12,805 13,167 

Material non-cash 

expenses (excl. 

depreciation) 4,943 4,559 205 123 212 12   5,360 4,694 

           

Segmentation by 

product area 

Semi-finished 

plastics 

Pipes and fittings  Eliminations Group 

in  '000 2007 2006 2007 2006   2007 2006 2007 2006 

Revenue from sales 

to external customers 213,148 186,907 87,562 80,076   (829) (4,207) 299,881 262,776 

Segment assets 147,286 138,951 50,802 54,994   0 0 198,088 193,945 

Segment capital 

expenditure 

9,152 14,796 4,673 4,054   0 0 13,825 18,850 

 

[9] Sales revenue  

Sales revenue is attributable solely to the sale of semi-finished plastics, pipes and fittings. The 

classification of sales revenue by region and product segment is outlined in segment reporting 

– Note 8. 
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[10] Staff costs 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Wages and salaries 46,055 40,654 

Expenses relating to social security 9,564 9,014 

Expenses relating to pensions 2,511 2,408 

 58,130 52,076 

 

[11] Research and development expenses 

The costs incurred as part of research and development activities vary in nature and are 

recognised in the respective items of the Group income statement. Delineation of research and 

development costs from costs incurred when implementing customised product properties is 

not possible on a systematic basis due to the same production processes applied in both areas. 

Research and development expenses are mainly comprised of staff costs, material costs and 

depreciation of property, plant and equipment.  

 

[12] Rental and leasing expenses 

Other operating expenses include expenses relating to rental and lease agreements amounting 

to 2,628 thousand in the financial year under review (prev. year: 2,303 thousand). The 

expenses are attributable mainly to the rental of dispatch warehouses and production facilities. 

The rental agreements have various contractual maturities (usually 3 to 15 years); some of the 

rental agreements include options for the extension of rental periods. All rental and lease 

agreements are structured as operating leases within the meaning of IAS 17. 

 

[13] Net finance income 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Finance income 763 830 

of which from the measurement of derivatives 0 50 

of which from loans and receivables 763 780 

   

in  '000 2007 2006 

Finance costs 653 563 

of which from the measurement of derivatives 176 60 

of which from borrowings and financial liabilities 477 503 

 

[14] Income taxes 

The principal elements of income tax expense for the 2007 and 2006 financial years are as 

follows: 
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in  '000 2007 2006 

Current tax   

Current tax expense 8,057 5,625 

Income from measurement of credits for the reduction of corporation 

tax (229) 0 

Capitalisation of credits for the reduction of corporation tax 0 (5,837) 

Deferred tax   

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (2,140) (829) 

Income tax expense/refund reported in Group income statement 5,688 (1,041) 

 

Reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of profit for the year carried in the 

balance sheet and the tax rate applicable to the Group for the 2007 and 2006 financial years is 

as follows: 

 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Profit before income taxes 19,833 15,125 

Income tax expense at German tax rate of 37.47% (prev. year: 

37.47%) 7,431 5,667 

Adjustments relating to reduction of future income tax charge (tax 

rate applicable in the future 28.43%) (1,793) 0 

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 31 23 

Tax rate differences (11) (42) 

Recognition of deferred tax assets relating to loss carryforwards 

attributable to previous year 64 (391) 

Income from measurement of credits for the reduction of corporation 

tax (229) 0 

Capitalisation of credits for the reduction of corporation tax 0 (5,837) 

Loss carryforwards used in connection with deferred tax assets not 

recognised in previous year (250) (194) 

Other 445 (267) 

Income tax expense at effective tax rate of 28.67% (prev. year: -

6.9%) 5,688 (1,041) 

Income tax expense/refund reported in Group income statement 5,688 (1,041) 

 

At December 31, 2007, the potential credit for the reduction of corporation tax, which results 

from the provisions set out in Section 37 and 38 KStG and is to be disclosed in accordance with 

IAS 12.82A, was 7,392 thousand (prev. year: 7,392 thousand). In the period under review, 

the credit for the reduction of corporation tax was measured at the present value of 6,066 

thousand (prev. year: 5,837 thousand). Payouts made in connection with the corporation tax 

credits are implemented in ten identical annual instalments of 739 thousand p.a. in the period 

from 2008 to 2017. To the extent that these payments do not fall due within one year, the items 
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are accounted for in the balance sheet as non-current assets. Payments due within one year 

are carried as current assets. 

 

Deferred tax 

The deferred tax liabilities and assets for the period under review are outlined below:  

    
  Group income 
 Group balance sheet   statement 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 2007 2006 

Deferred tax liabilities     

Non-current assets 9,292 11,931 (2,639) (1,010) 

Inventories 2,860 3,249 (389) 601 

Receivables and other assets 396 508 (112) 147 

Other provisions and liabilities 72 173 (101) 40 

Other items 101 125 (24) 35 

 12,721 15,986 (3,265) (187) 

Deferred tax assets      

Provisions for pensions 3,701 4,219 518 (190) 

Other provisions and liabilities 536 1,008 472 (120) 

Inventories 464 571 107 66 

Loss carryforwards 418 482 64 (391) 

Other items 73 37 (36) (7) 

 5,192 6,317 1,125 (642) 

     

after set-off:     

Deferred tax assets 545 615   

Deferred tax liabilities (8,074) (10,284)   

Deferred tax expense/income   (2,140) (829) 

 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset to the extent that the company has a 

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 

deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same 

taxation authority (IAS 12.74). 

At the reporting date, loss carryforwards amounted to 6,473 thousand (prev. year: 4,943 

thousand). Deferred tax assets of 418 thousand (prev. year: 482 thousand) were recognised 

for 1,194 thousand (prev. year: 1,410 thousand) of the loss carryforwards mentioned above. 

Beyond this, no other deferred tax assets were recognised, as the losses may not be used for 

the purpose of set-off with the taxable profit of other Group companies whose earnings 

situation is unlikely to improve so significantly in the short term that future taxable profit will be 

available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. 

Expiry date of tax loss carryforwards: 
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in  '000 2007 2006 

Between 3 and 20 years 4,471 2,227 

Indefinite carryforward 2,002 2,716 

 6,473 4,943 

 

[15] Earnings per share 

For the calculation of basic earnings per share, the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity 

holders of the parent entity shares is divided by the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding during the year. The method used for the purpose of calculating diluted and 

basic earnings per share is identical. 

The following table presents the amounts relevant to the calculation of basic and diluted 

earnings per share: 

 

in  '000 or units of 1,000 2007 2006 

Profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent 

company 14,118 16,146 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (without treasury 

shares) for the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share 600 599 

Dilutive effects 0 0 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (without treasury 

shares) for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share 600 599 

Basic earnings per share (in euro) 23.53 26.96 

Diluted earnings per share (in euro) 23.53 26.96 

 

No transactions with ordinary shares occurred between the reporting date and the preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements. 

 

[16] Paid and proposed dividends 

During the financial year a dividend, attributable to the ordinary shares of the parent company, 

in the amount of 7.50 per share plus a bonus of 1.50 per share in celebration of the 150th 

anniversary of the company in 2007 (prev. year: 7.50 per share) was declared and distributed. 

The total payment made in the financial year under review amounted to 5,391 thousand (prev. 

year: 4,492 thousand). 

A dividend proposal of 8.50 per share (prev. year: 7.50 per share plus a bonus in the amount 

of 1.50 per share) will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The 

proposed total dividend per share is 8.50 (prev. year: 9.00 per share); this amount was not 

recognised as a liability at the reporting date. The corresponding payment would total 5,100 

thousand (prev. year: 5,391 thousand). 
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[17] Intangible assets 

December 31, 2007         

in  '000 

Patents and 

licences Goodwill Total 

Balance at January 1, 2007    

(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 

accumulated amortisation and impairments) 3,469 143 3,612 

Additions 289 0 289 

Amortisation during the financial year (1,362) 0 (1,362) 

Exchange differences (15) 0 (15) 

Balance at December 31, 2007 2,381 143 2,524 

    

Balance at January 1, 2007    

Cost of purchase/conversion (gross carrying 

amount) 7,383 143 7,526 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (3,914) 0 (3,914) 

Carrying amount 3,469 143 3,612 

    

Balance at December 31, 2007    

Cost of purchase/conversion (gross carrying 

amount)  7,575 143 7,718 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (5,194) 0 (5,194) 

Carrying amount 2,381 143 2,524 

  

In 2007, software and licences relating to the operation of an SAP system were purchased. In 

accordance with the method applied in the previous year, patents and licences are amortised 

systematically over their economic life of 4 to 15 years by using the straight-line method. 

In the 2005 financial year, SIMONA AG acquired the remaining 49 per cent ownership interest 

in the subsidiary SIMONA FAR EAST Ltd., Hong Kong. This resulted in goodwill amounting to 

143 thousand, which is not subject to amortisation on a systematic basis. As at December 31, 

2007, an impairment test was conducted with regard to this asset. The recoverable amount was 

determined by means of cash flow projections based on a projection period of three years and 

a subsequent annuity assessment. The interest rate used for the purpose of cash flow 

projections was 9.75%. No write-downs were required. 



Page 41 of 76  

 

December 31, 2006       

in  '000 

Patents and 

licences  Total 

Balance at January 1, 2006    

(Cost of purchase/conversion, taking into account 

accumulated amortisation and impairments) 4,150 143 4,293 

Additions 703 0 703 

Amortisation during the financial year (1,363) 0 (1,363) 

Exchange differences (21) 0 (21) 

Balance at December 31, 2006 3,469 143 3,612 

    

Balance at January 1, 2006    

Cost of purchase/conversion (gross carrying 

amount) 6,701 143 6,844 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (2,551) 0 (2,551) 

Carrying amount 4,150 143 4,293 

    

Balance at December 31, 2006    

Cost of purchase/conversion (gross carrying 

amount)  7,383 143 7,526 

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (3,914) 0 (3,914) 

Carrying amount 3,469 143 3,612 
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[18] Property, plant and equipment 

December 31, 2007 

in  '000 

Land and 

buildings 

Plant and 

equipment Total 

Balance at January 1, 2007    

(taking into account accumulated amortisation and 

impairments) 29,060 57,972 87,032 

Additions 1,721 11,172 12,893 

Additions due to company acquisition 565 80 645 

Disposals (1) (372) (373) 

Disposals due to classification as assets held for 

sale 0 (2,198) (2,198) 

Amortisation during the financial year (1,366) (10,077) (11,443) 

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange 

rates (489) (332) (821) 

Balance at December 31, 2007 (taking into 

account accumulated depreciation and 

impairments) 29,490 56,245 85,735 

    

Balance at January 1, 2007    

Cost of purchase or conversion 51,706 182,199 233,905 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments (22,646) (124,227) (146,873) 

Carrying amount 29,060 57,972 87,032 

    

Balance at December 31, 2007    

Cost of purchase or conversion 53,487 179,591 233,078 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments (23,997) (123,346) (147,343) 

Carrying amount 29,490 56,244 85,735 
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December 31, 2006 

in  '000 

Land and 

buildings 

Plant and 

equipment Total 

Balance at January 1, 2006    

(taking into account accumulated amortisation and 

impairments) 25,601 55,643 81,244 

Additions 4,841 10,583 15,424 

Additions due to company acquisition 0 2,723 2,723 

Disposals 0 (437) (437) 

Amortisation during the financial year (1,382) (10,421) (11,803) 

Effects of changes in foreign currency exchange 

rates 0 (119) (119) 

Balance at December 31, 2006 (taking into 

account accumulated 

depreciation/amortisation and impairments) 29,060 57,972 87,032 

    

Balance at January 1, 2006    

Cost of purchase or conversion 46,862 170,488 217,350 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments (21,261) (114,845) (136,106) 

Carrying amount 25,601 55,643 81,244 

    

Balance at December 31, 2006    

Cost of purchase or conversion 51,706 182,199 233,905 

Accumulated depreciation and impairments (22,646) (124,227) (146,873) 

Carrying amount 29,060 57,972 87,032 

 

The useful life of assets was estimated on the following basis: 

 

 2007 2006 

Buildings 20 – 40 years 20 – 40 years 

Plant and equipment 5 – 20 years 5 – 20 years 

 

Other operating income includes gains from the disposal of property, plant and equipment 

amounting to 50 thousand (prev. year: 68 thousand). 
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[19] Inventories 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Raw material and consumables used 15,645 16,406 

Finished goods  40,034 35,221 

Inventories 55,679 51,627 

 

Inventory impairments recognised as expense amounted to 2,483 thousand (prev. year: 

2,282 thousand). The cost of materials includes expenses relating to raw materials and 

consumables in the amount of 174,745 thousand (prev. year: 149,577 thousand). 

 

[20] Trade receivables  

Trade receivables are not interest-bearing and are generally due within 30 to 90 days. 

 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Carrying amount 47,183 47,334 

   

of which neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date 39,035 40,528 

of which not impaired at the reporting date and past due within the 

following time ranges 
  

• up to 30 days 4,612 3,862 

• between 31 and 60 days 2,596 1,673 

• between 61 and 90 days 558 321 

• between 91 and 120 days 126 504 

• more than 120 days 256 446 

 

As regards the trade receivables that were neither impaired nor past due, there were no 

indications at the reporting date that customers will fail to meet their payment obligations. 

 

The changes to valuation allowances for trade receivables are outlined below: 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Balance of specific allowances at January 1 363 542 

Exchange differences (8) (3) 

Allocated 184 99 

Utilised (29) (106) 

Reversed (44) (169) 

Balance of specific allowances at December 31 466 363 

The following table includes expenses and income attributable to the derecognition of trade 

receivables as well as income from amounts received in connection with derecognised trade 
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receivables. Expenses attributable to the derecognition of trade receivables are reported as 

other operating expenses, while income attributable to amounts received in connection with 

derecognised trade receivables is accounted for as other operating income. 

 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Expenses attributable to the derecognition of trade receivables 209 156 

Income attributable to amounts received in connection with derecognised 

trade receivables 
54 92 

 

[21] Other assets and prepaid expenses 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Other receivables  7,933 4,236 

Receivables from other long-term investees and investors 390 540 

Prepaid expenses 868 127 

Other assets and prepaid expenses 9,191 4,903 

 

Other receivables include reimbursement rights attributable to value-added tax, bonus 

receivables from suppliers as well as a reimbursement right due within one year in respect of 

corporation tax credits associated with the Act Governing Tax Measures Accompanying the 

Introduction of the European Company and for the Change of other Tax Regulations (SEStEG). 

At the reporting date, other assets were neither impaired nor past due. 

 

[22] Cash 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Bank balances and cash on hand 22,875 25,151 

Cash 22,875 25,151 

 

Bank balances bear interest on the basis of floating interest rates applicable to balances 

payable on demand. 

At December 31, 2007, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities of 11,355 thousand (prev. 

year: 12,239 thousand).  

 

[23] Equity 

Changes in equity are presented in a separate statement of changes in equity. 

 

Issued capital 

As at December 31, 2007, the share capital of SIMONA AG was divided into 600,000 no-par-

value shares. These shares are classified as ordinary bearer shares. Each no-par-value share 
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has a notional interest of 25.83 in the company's share capital. The ordinary shares have 

been issued and fully paid in. In the 2007 financial year, SIMONA AG disposed of its treasury 

shares (1,000 no-par-value shares) in full. The effects of this transaction were accounted for 

directly in equity. 

 

Issued capital 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Share capital  15,500 15,500 

Treasury shares 0 (26) 

Issued capital 15,500 15,474 

 

Other reserves 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Currency translation effects (1,499) (223) 

Other reserves (1,499) (223) 

 

Other reserves include currency translation effects attributable to exchange differences 

occurring upon translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. 

 

 [24] Financial liabilities 

in  '000 Maturity date 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Current liabilities    

Pro-rata loan of USD 3 million (principal 

repayments due by 31/12/08) 09/2008 227 253 

Liabilities from deferred interest attributable to 

USD loans (current liabilities) 03/2008 77 92 

Bank overdrafts on demand 1 8 

  305 353 

Non-current liabilities    

Loan of USD 5 million (nominal amount) 09/2010 3,403 3,796 

Pro-rata loan of USD 3 million (principal 

repayments due after 31/12/08) 

09/2009 -  

09/2015 1,588 2,025 

  4,991 5,821 
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[25] Pensions  

The majority of employees within the SIMONA Group are entitled to post-employment benefits 

attributable to pension plan agreements. The aforementioned plans are structured as final 

salary pension plans in the case of both personnel employed on the basis of collective wage 

agreements and managerial staff, including members and former members of the Management 

Board. With the exception of payments to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH (cf. Note 26), no 

contributions are made to funds. 

The following table includes a breakdown of the expense items recognised in the Group income 

statement in connection with retirement benefits as well as the amounts carried in the balance 

sheet for the respective plans. 

 

Expenses included in staff costs for retirement benefits 

in  '000 2007 2006 

Current service cost 1,059 1,021 

Interest cost 1,452 1,387 

Cost of retirement benefits 2,511 2,408 

 

The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows: 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Obligation at beginning of reporting period 35,485 34,466 

Current service cost 1,059 1,021 

Interest cost 1,452 1,387 

Benefits paid (1,475) (1,389) 

Obligations at end of reporting period 36,521 35,485 

– of which non-current liability 35,025 34,010 

– of which current liability 1,496 1,475 

 

The Group anticipates expenses of 2,450 thousand in connection with defined benefit pension 

plans for the 2008 financial year. 

Actuarial gains and losses are offset in profit or loss to the extent that they exceed the 10% 

corridor. As from the subsequent period, the portion of actuarial gains and losses exceeding 

this corridor is offset over the future average remaining working life of the employees. No 

actuarial gains or losses were allocated in the 2007 and 2006 financial years. 
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Liabilities attributable to defined benefit obligations 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Present value of defined benefit obligation  33,598 37,123 

Unrecognised actuarial gains/losses attributable to the obligation (2,923) 1,638 

Liabilities attributable to defined benefit obligations 36,521 35,485 

 

The assumptions made for the purpose of determining the pension obligations are as follows: 

 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Discount rate 4.75% 4.0% 

Salary increase 2.0% 2.0% 

Pension adjustments 1.5% 1.5% 

Mortality (mortality tables published by K. Heubeck) 2005 G 2005 G 

 

[26] Company welfare institutions 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is structured as a long-term employee benefit fund within the 

meaning of IAS 19.7. Under the Articles of Association, the entity operates solely for the 

purpose of ensuring that former employees of SIMONA AG as well as their dependants receive 

retirement benefits. The beneficiaries of pensions are entitled to all the assets belonging to the 

entity as well as all income derived from these assets while the entity is in existence as well as 

in the case of liquidation or insolvency of the entity. SIMONA AG has no access rights to assets 

held by SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH. In the event of liquidation of the entity, the entity's assets 

are to be allocated to the recipients of benefits or are to be secured for the purpose of providing 

future benefits for said recipients. Thus, even in the event that SIMONA AG becomes insolvent, 

the creditors identified in connection with insolvency have no rights in respect of the assets of 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH. 

The assets of SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH may be 

utilised solely for benefit-related purposes relating to SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH. 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Present value of defined benefit plans at the beginning of the year  22,366 20,095 

Current service cost 1,584 1,512 

Interest cost 1,193 1,112 

Recognised actuarial losses 229 248 

Benefits paid (641) (601) 

Present value of defined benefit plans at the end of the year  24,731 22,366 

Market value of fund assets at the beginning of the year 37,400 32,795 

Additions/disposals of financial assets (641) (601) 

Return on fund assets 3,517 5,206 

Market value of fund assets at the end of the year 40,276 37,400 

Surplus plan assets 15,545 15,034 
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The surplus relating to plan assets is not accounted for in the consolidated financial statements 

of SIMONA AG, as SIMONA AG has no control over these assets. In accordance with the 

provisions set out in IAS 19.7, the plan assets are available to be used only to pay or fund 

employee benefits. 

The fair value of the plan assets includes shares in SIMONA AG with a fair value of 20,166 

thousand (prev. year: 18,000 thousand) as at December 31, 2007. 

 

Assets (liabilities) attributable to defined benefit obligations 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Defined benefit obligation   (27,381) (30,184) 

Fair value of plan assets 40,276 37,400 

Overfunded 12,895 7,216 

Unrecognised actuarial losses attributable to the obligation 2,650 7,818 

Assets attributable to defined benefit obligations  15,545 15,034 

 

[27] Other provisions 

in  '000 

Personnel-

related 

obligations 

Guarantees/

warranties Other Total 

Balance at January 1, 2007 4,001 3,806 525 8,332 

Allocated 1,063 1,387 980 3,430 

Reclassified (155) 0 0 (155) 

Used 1,112 817 0 1,929 

Balance at December 31, 

2007 3,797 4,376 1,505 9,678 

     

Short-term provisions 998 954 1,505 3,457 

Long-term provisions 2,799 3,422 0 6,221 

Balance at December 31, 

2007 3,797 4,376 1,505 9,678 

     

Short-term provisions 1,105 814 525 2,444 

Long-term provisions 2,896 2,992 0 5,888 

Balance at December 31, 

2006 4,001 3,806 525 8,332 

 

Personnel-related provisions encompass obligations in connection with agreements regarding 

part-time employment of staff approaching retirement, provisions relating to anniversaries as 

well as obligations from flexitime surpluses accumulated by employees. With the exception of 

provisions for flexitime surpluses, personnel-related provisions are measured on the basis of 
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actuarial data. Provisions for flexitime surpluses are measured by discounting the estimated 

staff costs over a period calculated as the difference between the average age and the 

projected date of retirement of those affected. 

At the reporting date, obligations in connection with agreements regarding part-time 

employment of staff approaching retirement amounted to 2,859 thousand (prev. year: 2,940 

thousand). This item is composed of obligations for performance-related arrears, additional 

compensation and severance payments. In the 2007 financial year, payments amounted to 

790 thousand (prev. year: 797 thousand). As at the reporting date, an amount of 155 

thousand was reclassified as "Liabilities Related Directly to Assets Held for Sale". 

Provisions for guarantees are recognised in connection with warranties for products sold in 

preceding years. Guarantee-related provisions at SIMONA AG are recognised for ongoing, 

regularly occurring warranty cases as well as for individual cases that occur on an irregular 

basis and are associated with the risk of above-average claims. 

As regards regularly occurring warranty cases, a provision is calculated on the basis of 

experience over what is adjudged to be a probable average claim period of 5 years. For the 

purpose of measuring the provision, the expenses actually incurred in connection with 

customer credits/refunds from warranty obligations as well as the thus resulting direct costs of 

processing a complaint are analysed in detail. Within this context, the weighted average 

warranty expense of the past 3 years is used for calculation purposes. 

The portion of warranty provisions calculated in respect of individual cases occurring on an 

irregular basis is recognised only when the utilisation of the provision is considered likely, a 

payment relating thereto is deemed probable and a reliable estimate can be made. 

The portion of the warranty provision whose utilisation is not due within one year after the 

reporting date is discounted. The effect attributable to compounding of provisions was 151 

thousand (prev. year: 101 thousand) and was accounted for in profit or loss. 

 

[28] Cash flow statement 

The cash flow statement presents changes to cash and cash equivalents during the financial 

year by outlining case inflows and outflows. In accordance with IAS 7, the cash flow statement 

includes information relating to cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and 

financing activities. 

As at December 31, cash and cash equivalents composed of securities, cash and current 

financial liabilities were as follows: 

 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Cash 22,875 25,151 

Current financial liabilities (excluding liabilities attributable to loans) (79) (100) 

 22,796 25,051 
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The effects of changes to cash and cash equivalents attributable to exchange rates were minus 

603 thousand (prev. year: minus 594 thousand) at Group level. 

Cash flows from investing and financing activities are accounted for directly, i.e. on a payments 

basis. Cash flows from operating activities are determined indirectly on the basis of earnings 

before taxes, i.e. via changes to the Group balance sheet, having accounted for the effects of 

currency translation. 

Other Non-cash expenses and income reported in the cash flows from operating activities 

relate mainly to changes to minority interests, changes to other provisions as well as cash-

related currency effects from additions to and disposals of assets. 

 

[29] Related-party disclosures 

Entities and persons with control over the SIMONA Group, as well as associated entities and 

persons, including close members of the family and intermediate entities, with significant 

influence over the financial and operating policies of the SIMONA Group are to be disclosed in 

accordance with IAS 24. 

 

Management Board 

 Wolfgang Moyses, Chairman of the Management Board, Kirn 

 Jochen Feldmann, Kirn  

 Dirk Möller, Kirn 

 

Supervisory Board 

 Hans-Wilhelm Voss, Chairman of the Supervisory Board  

 Hans-Werner Marx, Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board  

 Roland Frobel, Tax Consultant 

 Dr. Roland Reber, Managing Director of Ensinger GmbH 

 Bernd Meurer, Employee Representative 

 Karl-Ernst Schaab, Employee Representative 

 

According to a notification received on August 26, 2007, pursuant to Section 26(1) of the 

Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz – WpHG), Mrs. Anita Bürkle holds an 18.66 

per cent interest in the shares. Thus, her holding remains below the threshold of 20%, which is 

specified as the point from which significant influence over the financial and operating policies 

of the SIMONA Group exists. 

Dirk Möller is a shareholder (11.64 per cent of shares in SIMONA AG) and a member of the 

Management Board of SIMONA AG. Additionally, Mr. Möller performs executive or controlling 

duties within the individual companies of the SIMONA Group  
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• SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, (1), 

• SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Hazleton, (2), 

• SIMONA FAR EAST Ltd., Hong Kong, (2), 

• SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING Co. Ltd., Shanghai, (2), 

• SIMONA ASIA Ltd., Hong Kong, (2), 

• SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS Co. Ltd., Jiangmen, (2), 

• Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim, (3).  

 

The duties as an executive or controlling body are as follows: 

(1) Managing Director/General Manager, (2) Member of the Board of Directors, (3) Member of 

the Advisory Board 

In the period under review, SIMONA AG and the entities specified above sold plastic products 

to each other and provided services on arm's length terms. 

Dr. Roland Reber, member of the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG, is also the Managing 

Director of Ensinger GmbH. The two entities maintain business relations with each other on 

arm’s length terms. 

Beyond this, companies of the SIMONA Group entered into no significant transactions with 

members of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG and/or entities to 

which these persons have been appointed in an executive or controlling capacity. This also 

applies to close family members of the aforementioned persons. 

 

Compensation of members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board 

Total Management Board compensation amounted to 1,081 thousand in the period under 

review (prev. year: 1,015 thousand). It comprises 691 thousand (prev. year: 645 thousand) 

in fixed-level compensation and 390 thousand (prev. year: 370 thousand) in bonus 

payments. The company does not grant loans to members of the Management Board. 

Post-employment benefits of 10,073 thousand (prev. year: 10,913 thousand) have been 

provisioned for active members of the Management Board, former members of the 

Management Board and their surviving dependants.  Compensation of former Management 

Board members and their surviving dependants amounted to 782 thousand (prev. year: 778 

thousand).   

Supervisory Board compensation at Group level totalled 128 thousand in the 2007 financial 

year (prev. year: 124 thousand). Supervisory Board compensation encompasses no variable 

components. 
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[30] Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Principles of risk management 

Some of the assets, liabilities and planned transactions of SIMONA AG are exposed to risks 

associated with changes to foreign exchange rates and interest rates. 

The principal aim of financial risk management is to mitigate risks attributable to ongoing 

operating and finance-related transactions. 

Depending on the risk, the aim is to restrict the level of associated risk by means of derivative 

financial instruments and non-derivative hedging instruments. All hedging instruments are used 

solely for the purpose of hedging cash flows. 

 

Interest-rate risk 

The financial instruments exposed to interest-rate risk include short-term bank overdrafts as 

well as floating-rate US dollar loans. In the 2007 financial year, the interest-rate risk associated 

with these instruments was mitigated entirely by means of interest rate derivatives (interest rate 

swaps), as was the case in the previous financial year. In accordance with IFRS 7, interest-rate 

risks are addressed in the form of sensitivity analyses. These present the effects of changes in 

market interest rates on interest income, interest expense and items in the balance sheet. As 

the interest rate derivatives (interest rate swaps) are not part of a hedging relationship as 

described in IAS 39, changes are recognised directly in finance income or cost. 

Had the market interest rate of the US dollar been 100 basis points higher or lower at 

December 31, 2007, the net finance result would have been 146 thousand higher and 153 

thousand lower respectively.  

Had the market interest rate of the US dollar been 100 basis points higher or lower at 

December 31, 2006, the net finance result would have been 202 thousand higher and 213 

thousand lower respectively.  

 

Currency risk 

The SIMONA Group is exposed to risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations within the 

area of investing and financing activities. Risks attributable to foreign currencies are hedged to 

the extent that they affect the cash flows of the Group. The risk of exchange rate fluctuations 

associated solely with the translation of assets and liabilities into the reporting currency of the 

consolidated financial statements (euros) remains unhedged.   

Within the area of financing activities, the Group is exposed to foreign currency risks relating to 

two US dollar loans granted for the purpose of financing the US subsidiary. The currency risk 

remains unhedged due to the fact that the loan is denominated in the same currency as the 

functional currency of the US subsidiary.  

At an operating level, the respective entities within the Group conduct the majority of their 

business transactions in their functional currency. The parent company is responsible almost 

solely for managing transactions in foreign currencies and hedges these activities within 
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specified parameters as part of treasury management. Foreign exchange forward contracts and 

currency options are used for the purpose of hedging currency risks associated with operating 

activities. Within this context, payments up to a maximum of one year in advance are subject to 

hedging. As a result of these hedging activities, SIMONA AG was not exposed to significant 

currency risks as at the reporting date. 

IFRS 7 requires entities to present risk on the basis of sensitivity analyses. These analyses 

show how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk 

variable that were reasonably possible at the end of the reporting date. Exchange rate 

movements may occur in the case of primary financial instruments that are beyond the hedged 

parameters or that are hedged by means of financial derivatives in the form of forward foreign 

exchange transactions or currency options. 

If, as at December 31, 2007, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 10% against all other 

currencies, earnings before taxes would have been 278 thousand lower ( 525 thousand 

higher). 

The hypothetical effect on profit of minus 278 thousand [plus 525 thousand] is attributable to 

the following sensitivity to exchange rates: 

EUR/USD ( 247 thsd) [ 488 thsd] 

EUR/CHF 66 thsd [( 82 thsd)] 

EUR/GBP 25 thsd [( 31 thsd)] 

EUR/CZK ( 142 thsd) [ 174 thsd] 

EUR/PLN 20 thsd [( 17 thsd)] 

 

If, as at December 31, 2006, the euro had appreciated (depreciated) by 10% against all other 

currencies, earnings before taxes would have been 266 thousand lower ( 325 thousand 

higher). 

The hypothetical effect on profit of minus 266 thousand [plus 325 thousand] is attributable to 

the following sensitivity to exchange rates: 

EUR/USD ( 178 thsd) [ 218 thsd] 

EUR/CHF ( 82 thsd) [ 100 thsd] 

EUR/GBP 6 thsd [( 8 thsd)] 

EUR/CZK ( 12 thsd) [ 15 thsd] 

 

Credit risk 

SIMONA AG is exposed to credit risk as part of its operating activities. Financial assets 

outstanding – principally trade receivables – are monitored on a decentralised basis, i.e. by 

each legally separate company within the Group. Depending on the credit rating of the 

customer, receivables are subject to the risk of default, which is addressed with the help of 
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trade credit insurance. Receivables exposed to probable credit risk are identified and monitored 

on a regular basis; credit risk relating to such items is accounted for by means of specific 

allowances on an item-by-item basis. The maximum potential credit risk is limited to the net 

carrying amount (less value-added tax) of the financial assets.  

 

Liquidity risk 

In order to ensure solvency and maintain financial flexibility, the Group continuously monitors 

liquidity levels associated with operating activities as well as anticipated payments attributable 

to commitments arising from capital investment orders of the respective companies. Within this 

context, liquidity is identified and assessed with a separate tool. 

Alongside cash amounting to 22.8 million, the SIMONA Group has undrawn borrowing 

facilities of 11.4 million. The Group's objective is to maintain a well-judged balance between 

ongoing coverage of cash requirements and sustained flexibility through the utilisation of bank 

overdrafts and loans. 

 

As at December 31, 2007, the maturity structures of payment obligations relating to the 

financial liabilities of the Group were as follows:  

in  '000 Up to 1 year 2-5 years 

More than  

5 years Total 

Financial liabilities 537 5,024 773 6,334 

Trade  

payables 11,978 0 0 11,978 

Other liabilities 11,787 121 137 12,045 

Financial liabilities 24,302 5,145 910 30,357 

 

As at December 31, 2006, the maturity structures of payment obligations relating to the 

financial liabilities of the Group were as follows: 

in  '000 Up to 1 year 2-5 years 

More than  

5 years Total 

Financial liabilities 617 5,882 1,215 7,714 

Trade payables 10,536 0 0 10,536 

Other liabilities 12,818 144 155 13,117 

Financial liabilities 23,971 6,026 1,370 31,367 

 

The net amount due in 2008 from forward foreign exchange transactions is 229 thousand 

(prev. year: net payment obligation of 36 thousand). 

The market valuation of interest rate swaps resulted in a net payment obligation of 174 

thousand (prev. year: 13 thousand).  
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Based on market data, the value of the currency options is considered to be positive, resulting 

in a net amount due of 104 thousand (prev. year: 0).  

 

Capital management 

The primary objective of capital management within the Group is to ensure a high credit rating 

and maintain a healthy equity ratio. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in response to changing 

economic conditions where such action is deemed appropriate. For the purpose of maintaining 

or realigning the capital structure, the Group can make adjustments to shareholder dividend 

payments. As at December  31, 2007, and December 31, 2006, no changes were implemented 

with regard to SIMONA's goals, guidelines and policies. 

 

[31] Financial instruments 

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values of all financial instruments 

recognised by the Group: 

 

 Carrying amount Fair value 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Financial assets      

Cash and short-term deposits  LaR 

 

22,875 

 

25,151 

 

22,875 

 

25,151 

Foreign exchange forward 

contracts  HfT 234 52 234 52 

Interest-rate swap  HfT 0 63 0 63 

Currency options  HfT 104 0 104 0 

Trade receivables  LaR 

 

47,449 

 

47,449 

 

47,609 

 

47,609 



Page 57 of 76  

 

 Carrying amount Fair value 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Financial liabilities      

Bank overdrafts FLAC (2) (8) (2) (8) 

Other current financial 

liabilities FLAC (77) (92) (77) (92) 

Loans FLAC (5,217) (6,074) (5,217) (6,074) 

Foreign exchange forward 

contracts HfT (5) (88) (5) (88) 

Interest-rate swap HfT (174) (76) (174) (76) 

Trade payables FLAC 

 

11,978 

 

11,978 

 

10,536 

 

10,536 

(LaR = Loans and Receivables, HfT = Held for Trading, FLAC = Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost) 

 

The fair value of derivative financial instruments and loans was determined by discounting the 

expected future cash flows on the basis of the prevailing market rate of interest. Within this 

context, the calculation takes into account that the loans are subject to floating interest rates on 

the basis of standard market terms and conditions. 

The following table presents the net gains and losses from subsequent measurement of 

financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet, listed according to the respective 

measurement categories: 

 2007: Net gains and losses by measurement category 

in  '000 Interest Fair value 

Currency 

translation 

Valuation allowance 

/Disposal Total 

LaR 763 0 (852) (258) (347) 

HfT 0 10 187 0 197 

FLAC (345) 0 0 0 (345) 

Total 418 10 (665) (258) (495) 

 

2006: Net gains and losses by measurement category 

in  '000 Interest Fair value 

Currency 

translation 

Valuation allowance 

/Disposal Total 

LaR 780 0 (58) 115 837 

HfT 0 92 (106) 0 (14) 

FLAC (341) 0 0 0 (341) 

Total 439 92 (164) 115 482 
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Hedging transactions 

a) Cash flow hedging instruments 

At December 31, 2007, the Group held forward currency contracts used for the purpose of 

hedging expected sales to customers. In this case, the Group has given firm commitments. The 

forward currency contracts are deployed in order to hedge foreign currency risk associated with 

firm commitments. The terms and conditions of these contracts are outlined in the following 

table: 

Forward contracts to hedge future expected sales 

 in '000 Maturity date Exchange rates 

Pound Sterling 3,300 01. 01 - 05/2008 0.6802 – 0.7275 

Swiss Francs 2,400 01. 01 - 05/2008 1.6359 – 1.6650 

Polish Zloty 5,700 01. 01 - 05/2008 3.6385 – 3.8041 

 

At December 31, 2006, the Group held forward currency contracts used for the purpose of 

hedging expected sales to customers. In this case, the Group has given firm commitments. The 

forward currency contracts are deployed in order to hedge foreign currency risk associated with 

firm commitments. The terms and conditions of these contracts are outlined in the following 

table: 

Forward contracts to hedge future expected sales  

 in '000 Maturity date Exchange rate 

Pound Sterling 3,500 01. 01 – 06/2007 0.6747 – 0.6837 

Swiss Francs 400 01/2007 1.5565 

Czech Koruna 19,500 01. 01 – 06/2007 28.080 – 28.410 

US Dollar 800 01. 01 – 04/2007 1.2247 – 1.2300 

 

b) Fair value hedging instruments 

At the reporting date the Group had two interest-rate swaps used for the purpose of hedging 

risk arising from changes to the fair value of floating-rate US dollar loans. The maturities are 

based on the underlying loans. 

As at December 31, 2007, the Group also held currency options deployed for the purpose of 

hedging receivables denominated in a foreign currency. The terms and conditions of these 

contracts are outlined in the following table: 

Foreign currency options for fair value hedging 

 in '000 Maturity date Exchange rate 

US Dollar 4,500 05/2008 1.4400 

 

 

 



Page 59 of 76  

[32] Other information 

Subsidiaries 

Alongside SIMONA AG as the parent, the consolidated financial statements include the 

following entities. Unless otherwise specified, the ownership interest in the previous year was 

identical to that of the financial year under review. 

 

Company 

Ownership 

interest in % 

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH, Kirn, Germany 100.0 

SIMONA UK Limited, Stafford, United Kingdom 100.0 

SIMONA S.A., Domont, France 96.6 

SIMONA S.R.L., Vimodrone, Italy 98.0 

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., Barcelona, Spain 100.0 

SIMONA POLSKA, Sp. z o.o., Wroc aw/Poland 100.0 

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ s.r.o., Prague, Czech Republic 100.0 

SIMONA FAR EAST Limited, Hong Kong, China 100.0 

SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Hazleton, USA 100.0 

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING Co. Limited, Shanghai, China 100.0 

SIMONA ASIA Limited, Hong Kong, China 100.0 

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS Co. Limited, Jiangmen, China 100.0 

64 NORTH CONAHAN DRIVE HOLDING LLC, Hazleton, USA 100.0 

DEHOPLAST Polska, Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn, Poland 51.0 

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov, Czech Republic* 100.0 

Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim, Germany** 50.0 

 * The entity commenced operations in the 2007 financial year and has thus been included for the first time in the 
consolidated financial statements for the 2007 financial year. 

** Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim, Germany, is a joint venture under joint control. 

 

Financial assets 

SIMONA AG holds at least a one-fifth interest in the following entities, without being able to 

control or significantly influence the financial and operating policies of the entities in question. 

Unless otherwise specified, the ownership interest in the previous year was identical to that of 

the financial year under review. 

  

Company 

 Ownership 

Interest 

Equity  

31/12/06 

Profit/loss 

2006 

 %  '000  '000 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, Kirn, Germany 50.0 13,925 2,338 

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft 

der Belegschaft mbH, Kirn, Germany 50.0 6,319 4,259 
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Owing to its classification as a pension fund, SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH is not included in the 

consolidated financial statements, as specified in IAS 19.7. SIMONA Vermögensverwal-

tungsgesellschaft der Belegschaft mbH is not included in the consolidated financial statements 

because the assets of this entity may be utilised solely for funding purposes in respect of 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH and thus remain outside SIMONA AG's scope of economic control. 

 

Average number of staff employed during the financial year:  

 2007 2006 

 Group JV* Group JV* 

Industrial staff 748 19 627 17 

Clerical staff 418 1 419 2 

 1,166 20 1,046 19 

School-leaver trainees 

(apprentices) 58 0 55 0 

Total number of employees 1,224 20 1,101 19 

*  Employees of joint venture Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim 

 

Contingent liabilities and other financial commitments 

No provisions were recognised for the following contingent liabilities, carried at their nominal 

amounts, because the probability of the occurrence of risk is considered to be low. 

 

Liability risk   

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Rental guarantees 23 26 

 

Other financial commitments 

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

Commitments from rental and lease agreements   

Due within:   

1 year 1,660 1,945 

2 – 5 years 3,495 4,268 

after 5 years 318 815 

 5,473 7,028 

  

Purchase commitments arising from investment projects   

in  '000 31/12/07 31/12/06 

 10,461 3,662 
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Declaration of Conformity regarding the Corporate Governance Code 

In accordance with the provisions set out in Section 161 AktG, SIMONA AG – as the only 

exchange-listed company within the Group – filed a Declaration of Conformity for 2007 on 

March 12, 2008, and made the aforementioned Declaration permanently available to 

shareholders. 

 

Directors' holdings – Shares held by members of the Management Board and 

Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG 

As at June 29, 2007, (date of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) the members of the 

Management Board reported a total holding of 69,826 shares; this corresponds to approx. 

11.64 per cent of the share capital of SIMONA AG.  

The members of the Supervisory Board reported holdings of 2,800 shares, which corresponds 

to 0.47 per cent of share capital.  

In accordance with Section 15a of the Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz – 

WpHG), the members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board, as well as related 

parties, are legally obliged to disclose all significant acquisitions or disposals of shares in 

SIMONA AG. In the period under review, the company was notified of one such transaction. 

 

Audit fees 

Professional fees accounted for as expense in connection with the year-end financial audit 

amounted to 232 thousand, while fees attributable to tax consulting services amounted to 29 

thousand. 

 

Events after the reporting period 

On January 30, 2008, SIMONA disposed of its 50% interest in Georg Fischer SIMONA 

Fluorpolymer Products GmbH, Ettenheim, Germany, effective from January 1, 2008. 

 

Kirn, April 1, 2008 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of SIMONA AG 

 

 

in  '000 Notes 01/01/ –31/12/07 

01/01/ –

31/12/06 

Profit before taxation  19,833 15,125 

Income taxes paid [14] (8,057) (5,625) 

Interest received and paid  (110) (267) 

Amortisation of intangible assets and depreciation 

of property, plant and equipment [17, 18] 12,805 13,167 

Other non-cash expenses and income [28] 2,051 (374) 

Disposal group classified as held for sale [7] (4,082) 0 

Change in pensions [25] 1,036 1,019 

Result from disposal of non-current assets [18] 316 111 

Change in inventories [19] (4,047) (3,321) 

Change in trade receivables [20] 160 (7,045) 

Change in other assets [21] (3,684) 2,306 

Reclassification of liabilities in connection with 

assets held for sale [7] 1,129 0 

Change in liabilities and other provisions [27] (246) 1,479 

Net cash from operating activities  17,104 16,575 

Investments in intangible assets and property, 

plant and equipment [17, 18] (13,181) (16,127) 

Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries (after 

deduction of acquired cash) [6, 18] (650) (4,976) 

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets [18] 59 321 

Net cash used in investing activities  (13,772) (20,782) 

Proceeds from financial liabilities [24] 0 2,430 

Repayment of financial liabilities   (254) 0 

Proceeds from disposal of treasury shares  375 0 

Payment of prior-year dividend [16] (5,391) (4,492) 

Interest received  763 830 

Interest paid and other expenses  (477) (563) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (4,984) (1,795) 

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on 

liquidity [28] (603) (594) 

Change in cash and cash equivalents [28] (2,255) (6,596) 

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1  25,051 31,647 

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31  22,796 25,051 

Change in cash and cash equivalents [28] (2,255) (6,596) 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity of SIMONA AG 

 

 

 

     

     

 
Equity attributable to owners of the parent   
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in  '000              

Balance at 01/01/06 15,500 (26) 15,474 15,032 397 2,847 60,635 (107) 33,839 97,611 354 120 128,591 

Foreign currency translation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55 55 (577) 3 (519) 

Amount recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 55 55 (577) 3 (519) 

              

Profit for the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,146 16,146 0 20 16,166 

Appropriations to other revenue reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,495 0 (5,495) 0 0 0 0 

Dividend paid 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (4,492) (4,492) 0 0 (4,492) 

Addition due to company acquisition 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 61 61 

Balance at 31/12/06 15,500 (26) 15,474 15,032 397 2,847 66,130 (107) 40,053 109,320 (223) 204 139,807 

              

Balance at 01/01/07 15,500 (26) 15,474 15,032 397 2,847 66,130 (107) 40,053 109,320 (223) 204 139,807 

Foreign currency translation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 679 679 (1,276) (4) (601) 

Amount recognised directly in equity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 679 679 (1,276) (4) (601) 

              

Profit for the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,118 14,118 0 27 14,145 

Appropriations to other revenue reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 7,457 0 (7,457) 0 0 0 0 

Dividend paid (incl. bonus payment for 150th 

anniversary) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (5,391) (5,391) 0 0 (5,391) 

Disposal of treasury shares 0 26 26 242 0 0 0 107 0 107 0 0 375 

Balance at 31/12/07 15,500 0 15,500 15,274 397 2,847 73,587 0 42,002 118,833 (1,499) 227 148,335 
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Notes to SIMONA AG Shareholdings 

 

 

 

Company 

Ownership 

Interest  Equity   

Profit/loss 

2007  

 %  '000  '000 

Indirectly    

SIMONA S.A., Domont/France 96.6 3,585 346 

SIMONA S.R.L., Vimodrone/Italy 98.0 951 83 

SIMONA UK Limited, Stafford/United Kingdom  100.0 39 515 

SIMONA IBERICA SEMIELABORADOS S.L., 

Barcelona/Spain 100.0 (18) 91 

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS TRADING Co., 

Limited, Shanghai/China 100.0 376 13 

SIMONA ENGINEERING PLASTICS Co., Limited, 

Jiangmen/China 100.0 3,542 (61) 

64 North Conahan Drive Holding LLC, Hazleton/USA 100.0 2,482 (17) 

    

Directly    

SIMONA-PLASTICS CZ, s.r.o., Prague/Czech 

Republic 100.0 189 16 

SIMONA FAR EAST Limited, Hong Kong/China 100.0 730 8 

SIMONA POLSKA Sp. z o.o., Wroc aw/Poland 100.0  764 289 

SIMONA Sozialwerk GmbH, Kirn (2006) 50.0 13,925 2,338 

SIMONA Vermögensverwaltungsgesellschaft  der 

Belegschaft mbH, Kirn (2006) 50.0 6,319 4,259 

SIMONA Beteiligungs-GmbH, Kirn 100.0 1,834 0 

SIMONA AMERICA Inc., Hazleton/USA 100.0 4,128 (2,668) 

SIMONA Plast-Technik s.r.o., Litvinov/Czech Republic 100.0 364 (13) 

SIMONA ASIA Limited, Hong Kong/China 100.0 3,353 (86) 

Georg Fischer SIMONA Fluorpolymer Products 

GmbH, Ettenheim 50.0 4,653 313 

DEHOPLAST Polska Sp. z o.o., Kwidzyn/Poland  51.0 175 26 
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Other Information 

 

Responsibility Statement pursuant to Sections 297 (2), 315 (1) HGB 

 

"To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the 

consolidated financial statements of the SIMONA Group give a true and fair view of the assets, 

liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the SIMONA Group, and the management 

report of the Group includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business 

and the position of the Group, together with a description of the principal opportunities and risks 

associated with the expected development of the SIMONA Group." 

 

SIMONA AG 

Kirn, 1 April 2008 

 

Wolfgang Moyses 

CEO and Chairman of the Management Board 

 

Dirk Möller 

Member of the Management Board 

 

Jochen Feldmann 

Member of the Management Board 
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Report by the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG 

 

SIMONA succeeded in propelling its sales volumes and revenues to a record level in 2007. In 

parallel, earnings performance improved significantly in the year under review, despite the 

disproportionately high increase in the cost of raw materials, energy and transportation and the 

impact that this had on margins. Targeted measures aimed at raising efficiency levels and 

streamlining cost structures – proposed by the Management Board and supported by the 

Supervisory Board – were successful in partially offsetting elevated raw material, energy and 

transport costs. They also contributed to a solid bottom-line result. The acquisition of the 

plastics division of Deutsche Holzveredelung Alfons & Ewald Schmeing oHG proved 

strategically incisive. By extending the product range, SIMONA has gained access to new 

markets, captured additional market share and positioned the company as a premium supplier 

with a comprehensive portfolio. The Supervisory Board fully supports the approach of 

international expansion pursued by the Management Board. In the period under review steps 

were taken for the establishment of two new production sites, one in China and the other in the 

Czech Republic. In addition SIMONA's plant in North America was relocated to a site with 

better production facilities.  

The Supervisory Board and Management Board were again engaged in close dialogue over the 

course of 2007. This provided a solid foundation for the Supervisory Board to perform its duties 

in an efficient manner. Our report outlines the working relationship between the Management 

Board and the Supervisory Board, the key issues discussed at Supervisory Board and 

individual committee meetings, the application of corporate governance principles as well as 

the audit of the annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements. 

 

Cooperation with the Management Board 

Over the course of the 2007 financial year, the Supervisory Board discharged its duties under 

statutory provisions and the company's articles of association, advised the Management Board 

and senior staff on a regular basis and evaluated and monitored management's activities. In 

particular, the Supervisory Board conducted an assessment of the company's risk management 

and evaluated its commitment to comply with the regulations established by legislators, 

shareholders and shareholder bodies governing the avoidance of cases of liability, lawsuits for 

damages or situations that may adversely affect the image of SIMONA (compliance). Having 

conducted its examination, the Supervisory Board concluded that the system implemented 

meets the applicable requirements to the fullest extent. The Management Board and 

Supervisory Board engaged in dialogue concerning the strategic direction of the company and 

regularly discussed the status of strategy implementation. The Supervisory Board was directly 

involved in all decision-making processes of fundamental importance to the company.  

The Management Board informed the Supervisory Board as part of regular written and verbal 

reports, furnished in a timely and comprehensive manner. The reports focused in particular on 

issues relating to corporate planning, the course of business and the position of SIMONA AG 
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and its subsidiaries, including the risk situation, risk management, compliance and transactions 

of significant importance to the company. At the same time, the Management Board outlined 

any deviations between specified targets and the actual course of business, elucidated them in 

full and explained any countermeasures taken to rectify the situation.  

The content and scope of reports furnished by the Management Board met the requirements 

set out by the Supervisory Board. In addition to the above-mentioned reports, the Supervisory 

Board asked the Management Board to provide supplementary information relating to certain 

issues. In particular, the Management Board was available at Supervisory Board meetings for 

the purpose of discussing specific points and answering any questions put to it by the 

Supervisory Board. Transactions requiring the Supervisory Board's consent were dealt with and 

examined thoroughly in cooperation with the Management Board, focusing particularly on the 

benefits and effects of these transactions. The Supervisory Board agreed to all transactions 

where its consent was required.  

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board was also kept fully informed in between meetings 

convened by the Supervisory Board and its committees. For example, the CEO and the 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board met regularly to discuss SIMONA's strategy, current 

progress in business and risk management, as well as other key topics and decisions that 

arose. Additionally, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board conducted one-to-one meetings 

with the other members of the Management Board for the purpose of discussing specific issues 

relating to their departments. The CEO informed the Chairman of the Supervisory Board 

without delay of all important events that were significant in the assessment of SIMONA's state 

of affairs and progress or for the management of the company.  

The Supervisory Board also deliberated on the implementation of the German Corporate 

Governance Code within the company and, where applicable, initiated measures aimed at 

fulfilling the new requirements, working in close cooperation with the Management Board. The 

Supervisory Board does not concur with all aspects of the Corporate Governance Code. A 

summary of departures from the code was made available to the shareholders via the 

Company's website as part of the updated Declaration of Conformity, dated March 12, 2008, 

and issued pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz  – 

AktG). Furthermore, the relevant points were explained as part of the Corporate Governance 

Report.  

 

Meetings held by the Supervisory Board 

The Supervisory Board convened four scheduled meetings over the course of the 2007 

financial year. Its resolutions were passed during these meetings. The key topics discussed at 

the respective meetings were as follows:  

In the meeting of February 15, 2007, the Supervisory Board discussed the concluding report 

prepared by the Management Board for the 2006 financial year as well as the strategy and 

investment plan for the 2007 financial year. In addition, the Supervisory Board focused on the 

situation in the United States and Eastern Europe and informed itself of the status of planning 

for the new facility in Jiangmen, China. 
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In the meeting of April 26, 2007, the Supervisory Board discussed the consolidated financial 

statements, the annual financial statements as well as the Group management report and the 

management report of SIMONA AG for the 2006 financial year, the proposal by the 

Management Board for the appropriation of distributable profit generated in the 2006 financial 

year and the result of the year-end audit conducted by Ernst & Young AG, 

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft. These documents and the audit reports prepared by the 

auditor had been sent to all Supervisory Board members in good time prior to the meeting. The 

meeting was attended by the auditor, who reported in detail on the results of the audit. The 

results of the audit were discussed with the Supervisory Board, and questions relating to the 

audit were answered in full. The Supervisory Board was thus able to satisfy itself that the audit 

had been conducted in a proper manner. At the same meeting, the Supervisory Board 

approved the results of the audit. Having concluded its examination in full, the Supervisory 

Board raised no objections to the annual financial statements and consolidated financial 

statements or the management report and Group management report for the 2006 financial 

year; the accounts were thus approved by the Supervisory Board. It assessed and endorsed 

the Management Board's proposal for the appropriation of net retained earnings (i.e. 

unappropriated surplus). 

At its meeting on April 26, 2007, the Supervisory Board also discussed the agenda for the 

General Meeting of Shareholders in June, including the requisite proposals to be submitted, 

and voted on the proposal for the appointment of the auditor, to be put forward to the General 

Meeting. Additionally, the Supervisory Board examined the report on business performance in 

the first quarter of 2007, as well as capacity scheduling and reports concerning the 

subsidiaries. 

The main focus of the meeting convened on August 16, 2007, was on the course of business 

in the first six months of the financial year and the outlook for the second half of 2007. In 

addition, the Supervisory Board discussed the status report on business development in the 

Far East and progress made with regard to the company's future plans for business in China. 

At this meeting the Management Board also informed the Supervisory Board about the 

likelihood of an unfavourable course of business in the United States.  

The topics discussed at the Supervisory Board meeting of November 15, 2007, included 

business performance during the third quarter as well as the prospects for the year as a whole. 

Additionally, the Management Board outlined the cost structures at the production plant for 

finished parts in Würdinghausen as well as future developments within this area. Other items 

on the agenda were business performance in the United States as well as the presentation of 

business plans for the new facilities in China and the Czech Republic. Furthermore, the 

Supervisory Board enquired as to the status of the company-wide introduction of SAP as well 

as the reliability of the software.  

 

The work of the Supervisory Board committees 

The Supervisory Board was made up of six members in 2007, unchanged from the previous 

year (refer to page 51).  



Page 69 of 76  

The Supervisory Board is assisted in its activities by the Audit Committee and the Personnel 

Committee. Both committees regularly provide the Supervisory Board with extensive 

information relating to their activities. The duties and composition of the committees remained 

unchanged compared with 2006.  

The Audit Committee is responsible for issues pertaining to financial reporting and annual 

auditing as well as risk management and acquisitions. It comprises three members and is 

chaired by Hans-Wilhelm Voss. The Personnel Committee, also comprising three members and 

chaired by Hans-Wilhelm Voss, carries out the preparatory work necessary for the personnel 

decisions made by the Supervisory Board, particularly with regard to compensation and the 

conclusion of, amendments to and termination of Management Board members' employment 

contracts. 

The Audit Committee held ten meetings and one conference call during the period under 

review. In particular, it discussed the annual financial statements and consolidated financial 

statements as well as the management report and Group management report for the 2007 

financial year, the Management Board's proposal for the appropriation of net retained earnings 

and progress made within the area of risk management, in addition to examining the internal 

control system. It discussed the results of the 2006 financial year as well as the outcome of the 

annual audit for 2006 and the auditor's review of the quarterly and half-yearly results, as well as 

performing preparatory duties in connection with the Supervisory Board's proposal for the 

appointment of an auditor for 2007, to be put forward to the Annual General Meeting of 

Shareholders. Furthermore, it decided on the focal points of the audit. In addition, it discussed 

the auditor's fee and decided on how the amount should be allocated to the respective entities 

being audited. 

The Personnel Committee convened on four occasions over the course of the reporting period. 

The main focus of these meetings was on determining the salaries of Management Board 

members and appointing a new member of the Management Board for the area of Marketing 

and Sales in response to the expansion of business and the increasingly international structure 

of the Group. Within this context, the Committee discussed and adopted the new allocation of 

duties within the extended board, as prepared and presented by the Management Board. In 

addition, the Personnel Committee and the Management Board discussed the variable 

component of Management Board compensation and adopted a new model based on the 

performance of the Group as a whole. The Personnel Committee informed the Supervisory 

Board about the new compensation system for the Management Board. 

The committees furnished the Supervisory Board with reports on a regular basis, thus 

contributing to an effective and well-informed collaboration between the Supervisory Board and 

the committees.  

 

Annual financial and consolidated financial statements 

The accounts of SIMONA AG for the 2007 financial year were audited by Ernst & Young AG, 

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Frankfurt, appointed as auditor by the General Meeting of 

Shareholders on June 29, 2007. Before proposing Ernst & Young AG as auditor to the General 
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Meeting of Shareholders, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board had obtained confirmation 

from Ernst & Young AG that there were no circumstances which might prejudice its 

independence as an auditor.  

Ernst & Young AG audited the financial statements and the consolidated financial statements 

for the year as well as the management report and the Group management report in 

conjunction with the accounting records and issued an unqualified audit opinion. The financial 

statements mentioned above, the audit reports prepared by Ernst & Young AG and the 

Management Board's proposal for the appropriation of net retained earnings were sent to all 

Audit Committee and Supervisory Board members in good time.  

The auditor attended the meeting of the Audit Committee on April 15, 2008, and provided an in-

depth report on the outcome of the audit. The results of the audit were discussed with the 

Supervisory Board, and questions relating thereto were answered by the auditor. The 

Supervisory Board was thus able to satisfy itself that Ernst & Young AG had conducted the 

audit in the proper manner.  

At this meeting, the Supervisory Board concurred with the results of the audit, as no objections 

were to be raised upon conclusion of its own examination, and approved the annual financial 

statements and consolidated financial statements as well as the management report and the 

Group management report of SIMONA AG. Thus, the annual financial statements were formally 

adopted. The Supervisory Board assessed and endorsed the Management Board's proposal for 

the appropriation of net retained earnings.  

The Supervisory Board would like to thank the members of the Management Board and 

employees of the company for their committed and successful work. Special thanks also go to 

our customers and partners, without whom the company's achievements in its 150th 

anniversary year would not have been possible.  

 

Kirn, April 15, 2008 

The Supervisory Board 

Hans-Wilhelm Voss, Chairman 
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Corporate Governance Report of the Supervisory Board and the 

Management Board of SIMONA AG 

 

 

Germany has implemented a legal framework designed to make corporate governance and 

reporting systems of exchange-listed companies more transparent and more efficient. This 

framework is based on the German Corporate Governance Code, as adopted by the Cromme 

Commission, in the revised version of June 14, 2007. SIMONA AG has met the majority of 

requirements specified within the Code. The Supervisory Board and the Management Board 

responded to the legal requirements of the Code by implementing appropriate measures within 

the Company, insofar as these were necessary to supplement the corporate governance 

system already in place at SIMONA. 

 

Departures from the German Corporate Governance Code 

There are several Company-specific characteristics which preclude SIMONA AG from adopting 

the Code in its entirety.  

 

Convening of the General Meeting 

 "The company shall send notification of the convening of the General Meeting together with 

the convention documents to all domestic and foreign financial services providers, 

shareholders and shareholders' associations by electronic means if the approval 

requirements are fulfilled." 

Under Section 30 b (1) No. 1 of the Securities Trading Act (Wertpapierhandelsgesetz – WpHG), 

the convening of a General Meeting of Shareholders as well as the convention documents must 

be published in the electronic Federal Gazette. Disclosure in the electronic Federal Gazette 

cannot be substituted with publication in other media or transmission of the convention 

documents in a different format. An additional dispatch to all recipients by electronic means 

would not be feasible for SIMONA AG, even if the necessary approval requirements were to be 

met, as the names and e-mail addresses of shareholders are not know in all cases. Therefore, 

SIMONA AG is of the opinion that convening the General Meeting of Shareholders by 

electronic means, in addition to the method already implemented, is not practicable. In view of 

this, the Company has decided not to implement procedures relating to the request for approval 

to electronic notifications. 

 

D&O liability insurance 

 "If the company takes out a D&O (directors and officers' liability insurance) policy for the 

Management Board and Supervisory Board, a suitable deductible shall be agreed." 
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Contrary to the GCGC recommendation set out in Clause 3.8, the liability insurance policy 

taken out by SIMONA AG for its Management Board and Supervisory Board does not include a 

deductible. 

 

Transparency of Management Board and Supervisory Board compensation 

 "The compensation of the members of the Management Board shall be comprised of a fixed 

salary and variable components. Variable compensation should include one-time and 

annually payable components linked to the business performance as well as long-term 

incentives. In particular, stock options or comparable instruments (e.g. phantom stocks) 

serve as variable compensation components with a long-term incentive." 

The compensation package of the members of the Management Board of SIMONA AG 

comprises a fixed salary and variable components linked to the long-term performance of the 

Company. SIMONA AG has not established a stock option plan. 

 "In concluding Management Board contracts, care should be taken to ensure that payments 

made to a Management Board member on premature termination of his contract without 

serious cause do not exceed the value of two years' compensation (severance payment cap) 

and compensate no more than the remaining term of the contract. The severance payment 

cap should be calculated on the basis of the total compensation for the past full financial 

year and if appropriate also the expected total compensation for the current financial year.  

Payments promised in the event of premature termination of a Management Board 

member's contract due to a change of control should not exceed 150% of the severance 

payment cap." 

The Management Board contracts do not contain a specific clause governing severance 

entitlements or provisions relating to severance payment caps in the event of premature 

termination of a contract of service. However, severance pay may be granted on the basis of 

individual termination agreements.  

 "The total compensation of each member of the Management Board is to be disclosed by 

name, divided into non-performance-related, performance-related and long-term incentive 

components, unless decided otherwise by the General Meeting by three-quarters majority." 

On June 23, 2006, the General Meeting passed a resolution, on the basis of the required 

majority, for the non-itemised publication of Management Board compensation for a period of 

five years up to the annual financial and consolidated financial statements prepared for the 

2010 financial year. 

 „Disclosure [of Management Board compensation] shall be made in a compensation report 

which as part of the Corporate Governance Report describes the compensation system for 

Management Board members in a generally understandable way." 

The compensation report is published as part of the management report. 

 "Members of the Supervisory Board shall receive fixed as well as performance-related 

compensation. Performance-related compensation should also contain components based 

on the long-term performance of the enterprise. 
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The compensation of the members of the Supervisory Board shall be reported individually in 

the Corporate Governance Report, subdivided according to components." 

The General Meeting of Shareholders is authorised to introduce variable compensation for the 

Supervisory Board, with this form of remuneration being linked to the attainment of specific 

performance targets. No such variable compensation components were agreed by the General 

Meeting of Shareholders for the 2007 financial year. 

Supervisory Board compensation is presented in an itemised format in the compensation 

report. 

 

Structure of the Supervisory Board and its Committees  

 "The Supervisory Board shall set up an Audit Committee which, in particular, handles issues 

of accounting, risk management and compliance, the necessary independence required of 

the auditor, the issuing of the audit mandate to the auditor, the determination of auditing 

focal points and the fee agreement. The Chairman of the Audit Committee should not be a 

former member of the Management Board of the company." 

The Business Committee (referred to as "Audit Committee") established within the Supervisory 

Board is responsible for the same issues as an Audit Committee. The entire Supervisory Board 

of SIMONA AG is regularly furnished with detailed information related to the Company's 

reporting and risk management; it also holds in-depth discussions with the auditors as regards 

the Company's financial statements. 

Our area of business calls for comprehensive knowledge of products, markets and processes. 

Therefore, the Supervisory Board is of the opinion that the appointment of a former member of 

the Management Board as Chairman of the Business Committee (Audit Committee) is 

beneficial to the efficient running of the Committee rather than counterproductive. 

 "The Supervisory Board shall form a nomination committee composed exclusively of 

shareholder representatives which proposes suitable candidates to the Supervisory Board 

for recommendation to the General Meeting." 

The shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board already discuss such proposals on 

a separate basis without having formed a specific nomination committee, the aim being to put 

forward the names of suitable candidates to the Supervisory Board for recommendation to the 

General Meeting. 

 "In its report, the Supervisory Board shall inform the General Meeting of any conflicts of 

interest which have occurred, together with details of how such issues were addressed. 

Material conflicts of interest and those which are not merely temporary in respect of the 

person of a Supervisory Board member shall result in the termination of his mandate." 

On June 23, 2006, Dr. Roland Reber was appointed to the Supervisory Board of SIMONA AG. 

Dr. Roland Reber also holds the position of Managing Director at Ensinger GmbH, Nufringen. 

The two entities maintain business relations with each other on arm’s length terms. Should a 

material conflict of interest arise in specific areas as a result of the mandate held by Dr. Roland 

Reber, the latter will inform the Supervisory Board about such conflict of interest and will not 
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take part in discussions or, if applicable, voting on any such points on the agenda. No conflicts 

of interest occurred during the period under review. 

 

Disclosure of shareholdings, annual financial statements and interim financial 

statements for the first six months 

 "The shareholdings, including options and derivatives, held by individual Management Board 

and Supervisory Board members shall be disclosed if these directly or indirectly exceed 1 

per cent of the shares issued by the Company. If the entire holdings of all members of the 

Management Board and Supervisory Board exceed 1 per cent of the shares issued by the 

Company, these holdings shall be disclosed separately for the Management Board and the 

Supervisory Board."  

Ownership interests held by members of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board are 

presented in the consolidated financial statements or in the compensation report, which is an 

integral part of the management report. Furthermore, the ownership interests are presented 

online insofar as the Company was notified of any movements above or below the thresholds 

necessitating disclosure. 

 "The consolidated financial statements shall be publicly accessible within 90 days of the end 

of the financial year; interim reports shall be publicly accessible within 45 days of the end of 

the reporting period." 

SIMONA AG will make the consolidated financial statements and the interim reports available 

to the public within the statutory time frames. 

 

Disclosure on the internet  

SIMONA AG also publishes its declaration of conformity, compensation report and corporate 

governance report on the internet. In addition, all facts deemed to be of relevance are disclosed 

on the corporate website in order to reach a broad audience and establish a level playing field 

for shareholders, analysts and other stakeholders.  
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Auditor's Report  

 

 

We have issued the following audit opinion relating to the consolidated financial statements and 

Group management report: 

"We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by SIMONA AG, Kirn, 

comprising the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the 

cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including segment 

reporting, together with the Group management report for the financial year from 1 January to 

31 December 2007. The legal representatives of the Company are responsible for the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the Group management report in 

accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, as well as in compliance with the additional 

provisions set out in Section 315a (1) of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch – 

HGB). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and 

the Group management report based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 

317 of the German Commercial Code and in compliance with German generally accepted 

standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer 

(IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements 

materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of 

operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial 

reporting framework and in the Group management report are detected with reasonable 

assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of 

the Group and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the 

determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control 

system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements 

and the Group management report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework 

of the audit. The audit also includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities 

included in consolidation, the determination of the entities to be included in consolidation, the 

accounting and consolidation principles applied and the significant estimates made by the legal 

representatives, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements and the Group management report. We believe that our audit provides a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Our audit has not led to any reservations. In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the 

consolidated financial statements comply with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the additional 

requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a (1) HGB and give a true and 

fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the Group in 

accordance with these requirements. The Group management report is consistent with the 

consolidated financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group's 

position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development. 
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Eschborn/Frankfurt am Main, 1 April 2008 

Ernst & Young AG 

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft 

Steuerberatungsgesellschaft 

 

Klein    Mühleck 

German Public Auditor German Public Auditor 
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